
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

May 2
nd

 2012 

2:00 p.m. 

 

 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
  2-REPORTS 

Steven M. Nichols, County Administrator 
 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 
  4-CONSENT AGENDA 

TAB M  Minutes of April 11th 2012 Public Hearing – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB Mc  Minutes of April 18th 2012 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
TAB N  Union Mills Ag/Forestal District Renewal – Steven Tugwell, Senior Planner 
TAB O Resolution/VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan (2012-13 through 2017-18) and the VDOT Construction  

Priority List (2012/13) – Gregory Banks, VDOT Secondary Programming Coordinator  
TAB P  Farmers Market Promotion grant application – Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 
TAB Q  Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 
TAB R Resolution/Guidelines for PPEA – Fred Payne, County Attorney 
TAB S  Supplemental Appropriation for additional State Revenue to the Schools FY12 – Ed Breslauer, Director  

of Finance for the Schools 
 

 5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB T  Melissa Marks – Senior Finance Assistant 
 
   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 
     

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

  None 
 
   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB U  CSA request for budget supplement – Jacqueline A. Meyers, Ph.D  
TAB V  Proposed adoption of Design-Build Procedures – Bobby Popowicz, Economic Development Director 
TAB W  Amendment to the DJG Contract for the Fork Union Fire Station – Bobby Popowicz, Economic  

Development Director 
TAB XYZ Resolution/FY2013-2017 Capital Improvements Plan [adoption of] – Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
TAB A  Resolution/FY13 Budget Adoption, Set Tax Rates and Appropriate Funds – Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 
TAB B  Appointment/Board of Zoning Appeals – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 
  9-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
10-NEW BUSINESS 

TAB C  Request to amend the Noise Ordinance of the County Code 
 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 
 12-CLOSED MEETING 

   Discuss Real Property Acquisition 
 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

13-ADJOURN 

  
 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  
of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  
one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 
********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 
 
2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 
bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  
The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  
       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 





FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

FY11 Budget Public Hearings 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

April 11
th

 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

    Robert Ullenbruch, Vice-Chair  

Mozell H. Booker 

Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Kenney called to order the Public Hearings of April 11

th
 2012 on the FY13 Budget at 

7:00 p.m. in the Circuit Courtroom, Fluvanna Courts Building, Palmyra, Virginia.   

 

Chairman Kenney reviewed the rules of order for public comments. 

 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2013 – 2017 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 

Mr. Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst, reviewed with the Board the items that were on the FY 2013 – 

2017 Capital Improvement Plan.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

FY 2013 – 2017 Capital Improvements Plan 

Chairman Kenney opened the public hearing. 

 Ms. Elizabeth Franklin, on behalf of the Fluvanna Taxpayers Association – spoke in 

regards to the CIP being on the website. 

 Mr. Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – spoke in opposition of the CIP. 

 Mr. Richard Rose, Columbia District – spoke in opposition of the CIP. 

 Ms. Jean DeMarco, Cunningham District – spoke in opposition of the CIP. 

 Ms. Claudia Thomas, Columbia District – spoke in opposition of the CIP. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the public hearing. 

 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2013 Real Estate Tax Rate Increase 

Mr. Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst, reviewed with the Board the FY 2013 Real Estate Tax Rate.  

Information was provided on the collection rate and what the proposed increase in the real 

property tax rate from $.57 to $.68 per $100 of assessed value would entail. 

 

PUBLIC HEARIING 

Proposed FY 2013 Real Estate Tax Rate Increase 



Board of Supervisors 

April 11
th

 2012 

FY11 Budget Public Hearings 

page 2 

 

 2 

Chairman Kenney opened the public hearing. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Mr. Minor Eager, Palmyra District – opposed to proposed tax rate increase. 

 Ms. Sherri, Mallory and Madeline Ashe – supports the proposed tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Mike Lawson, Palmyra District – opposed to proposed tax rate increase. 

 Ms. Perrie Johnson, Fork Union District, President of the Fluvanna Education 

Association – supports the proposed tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – opposed to proposed tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Brian Thomas, Columbia District – opposed to proposed tax rate increase. 

 Ms. Elizabeth Fortune, Lake Monticello – opposed to proposed tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Chris Fairchild, Rivanna District – opposed to sustainable rate. 

 Ms. Elizabeth Franklin, on behalf of the Fluvanna Taxpayers Association – opposed to 

proposed tax rate increase. 

 Thomas Payne, Palmyra District – supports the proposed tax rate increase. 

 Jack Ruch, Rivanna District – opposed to sustainable rate. 

 Susie Morris, Cunningham District - offered a challenge to the school and county to work 

together and brain storm ways to make the new high school a hub of the community, 

supports the proposed tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Adrian Miller, Lake Monticello - opposed to proposed tax rate increase, would like 

to see debt service paid. 

 Ms. Gequetta Murray-Key, Rivanna District – supports proposed tax rate increase. 

 Ms. Margie Johnson, Kent Store – opposed to proposed tax rate increase. 

 Mr. Gibbs Scott, Lake Monticello – opposed to proposed tax rate increase. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the public hearing. 

 

PRESENTATION 

Proposed FY 2013 County Budget 

Mr. Eric Dahl, Budget Analyst, reviewed with the Board the FY 2013 County Budget 

expenditures and revenues.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Proposed FY 2013 County Budget 

Chairman Kenney opened the public hearing. 

The following citizens addressed the Board: 

 Mr. Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – would like a pie chart showing the debt service 

from 2001 to 2012 put on the website; we need to live within our means. 

 Mr. Dennis Holder, Columbia District – opposed to water line and sustainable rate. 

 Ms. Donna Shaunesey, JAUNT – informed the Board of cuts and rate increases due to the 

proposed budget cuts for JAUNT. 

 Ms. Margery Weddington, Fork Union District – spoke in support of the senior center. 

 Mr. Richard Soggas, Palmyra District – spoke in regards to the community supporting the 

seniors not the government. 

 Ms. Thelma Sotta – spoke in support of the senior center. 

 Ms. Claudia Thomas, Kent Store – spoke in opposition of the senior center. 



Board of Supervisors 

April 11
th

 2012 

FY11 Budget Public Hearings 

page 3 

 

 3 

 Mr. Chris Fairchild, Rivanna District – spoke in regards to the proposed sustainable 

budget. 

 Ms. Kate Smith, Fork Union District – spoke in support of the proposed budget. 

 Ms. Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – spoke in regards to the proposed sustainable 

budget. 

 Ms. Gequetta Murray- Key, Rivanna District – spoke in regards those that made a 

sacrifice for us, it’s about education and educated decisions; support of proposed budget. 

 Ms. Eileen Morris, Lake Monticello – spoke in regards to looking at the bigger picture. 

 Mr. Leonard Gardner, Rivanna District – spoke in regards to the non-profit agencies that 

were zeroed out, please restore. 

 Mr. Don Chamburger, Hidden Valley - opposed to proposed sustainable budget and rate. 

 Jean DeMarco, Lake Monticello – opposed to proposed budget. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the public hearing. 

 

The board discussed the proposed budget and tax increase.  Mrs. Booker would like to see the 

non-profit agencies level funded. 

 

ADJOURN 

 MOTION: 

At 9:43 p.m. Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Ullenbruch 

seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.   AYES:  Booker, Chesser, 

Ullenbruch, Kenney, and Weaver.  NAYS:  None.   

 

 

ATTEST:    FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

__________________ _______________________________________ 

Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 

 











MOTION:  I move to renew the Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District, which consists of 14 
parcels totaling 324.752 acres, for an additional 10 year period, expiring on May 15, 2022. 
 
AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS       May 2, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  Review and renewal of the Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District. 
 
TIMING:  The Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District (AFD) expires on May 15, 2012 
without further Board of Supervisor’s action to either review or renew the district.    
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: This action would renew the AFD for an additional 10 year period to 
expire on May 15, 2022. 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  In 2002, the Board of Supervisors approved the Union Mills 
Agricultural/Forestal District. The previous adoption and implementation of the 
Agricultural/Forestal District sections of the state code was intended to further the County’s goal 
of rural preservation, and to protect participants from the potential for encroaching development 
and escalating property taxes. 
 
There are fourteen (14) parcels that currently encompass the Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal 
District.  A response was received on eight (8) of these parcels, all requesting that the parcels 
remain in the Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District.  It is the recommendation of the 
Planning & Community Development Department that the Board of Supervisors renew the 
Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District for an additional ten year period. No parcels were 
requested to be withdrawn. The Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District consists of 324.752 
acres. 
 
The Union Mills District consists of the following property owners, tax map parcel numbers and 
parcel acreages: 
 

OWNER’S NAME TAX 
MAP 

PARCEL 
# 

ACREAGE RECEIVED 
FORM 

Puryear, Jeffrey F. & Maribeth A. 9 (A) 16A 2.098  
Ransone, John E., Jr. 9 (A) 16C 29.750  
Banton, Randolph P. & Patricia Harris 9 (A) 16D 0.330 X 
Banton, Randolph P. & Patricia H. 9 (A) 16E 4.490 X 
Kruger Living Trust 9 (A) 24A 90.230 X 
Banton, Patricia Harris 9 (A) 25A 1.080 X 
Banton, Randolph P. & Patricia Harris 9 (A) 25B 8.260 X 
Ransone, John E., Jr. 9 (A) 26 168.217  
Ransone, John E., Jr. 9 (A) 26A 2.000  
Ransone, John Everette, Jr. 9 (A) 26B 2.894  
Banton, Randolph P. & Patricia 9 (8) 1 2.117 X 
Puryear, Jeffrey F. , ET AL 9 (8) 2 6.734  
Kruger Living Trust 10 (A) 8 0.162 X 

1





BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Fluvanna held in the 
Fluvanna County Courts Building at 2:00 p.m. on the 2nd day of May 2012, at which the following 
members were present, the following resolution was adopted by a majority of all members of the Board 
of Supervisors, the vote being recorded in the minutes of the meeting as shown below: 

 

 
PRESENT VOTE 
Shaun Kenney, Chairman ...............................................................................................................  
Bob Ullenbruch, Vice-Chairman. ..................................................................................................  
Mozell Booker ..................................................................................................................................  
Donald Weaver ................................................................................................................................  
Joe Chesser ........................................................................................................................................  

 

 
On the motion of ___________, seconded by___________, which carried by a vote of 

_______the following resolution was adopted: 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE RENEWAL OF THE UNION MILLS 
AGRICULTURAL/FORESTAL DISTRICT FOR AN ADDITIONAL TEN-YEAR 

PERIOD TO EXPIRE MAY 15, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors approved the creation of the 
Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District on May 15, 2002 for a ten-year period; and 
 

WHEREAS, the district is set to expire on May 15, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 15.2-4311 of the State Code of Virginia, the Fluvanna 

County Planning & Community Development Department contacted the current property owners of 
parcels identified in the Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District and advised them that the approved 
district would expire on May 15, 2012 and inquired whether the owners desired that the property remain 
in or be removed from the district. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on this 2nd day of May 2012 that the Fluvanna 
County Board of Supervisors hereby renews the Union Mills Agricultural/Forestal District for an 
additional ten-year period to expire on May 15, 2022 

 
 

______________________________ 
Mary Weaver, Clerk 
Board of Supervisors 

Fluvanna County, Virginia 

ATTACHMENT A

3





BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held at 2:00 
p.m. on Wednesday, May 2nd 2012 in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 
 
  Present     Vote 
  Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman    

Bob Ullenbruch, Vice Chairman   
  Mozell H. Booker     
  Joe Chesser      
  Donald W. Weaver     
           __  
 On a motion by ____________ seconded by ________ and carried by a vote of ___ the 
following resolution was adopted. 

 

RESOLUTION 
VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan (2012/13 through 2017/18) 

and 
VDOT Construction Priority List (2012/13) 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 33.1-23 and 33.1-23.4 of the 1950 Code of Virginia as amended, provides 
the opportunity for each county to work with the Virginia Department of Transportation in 
developing a Secondary Six-Year Road Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Board had previously agreed to assist in the preparation of this Plan, in 
accordance with the Virginia Department of Transportation policies and procedures, and 
participated in a public hearing on the proposed Plan (2012/13 though 2017/18) as well as the 
Construction Priority List (2012/13) on April 18th 2012 after duly advertised so that all citizens of 
the County had the opportunity to participate in said hearing and to make comments and 
recommendations concerning the proposed Plan and Priority List; and 
 
WHEREAS, David Crim, Residency Administrator, Virginia Department of Transportation, 
appeared before the Board and recommended approval of the Six-Year Plan for Secondary 
Roads (2012/13 through 2017/18) AND Construction Priority List (2012/13) for Fluvanna 
County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that since said Plan appears to be in the best interest 
of the Secondary Road System in Fluvanna County and of the citizens residing on the 
Secondary System, said Secondary Six-Year Plan (2012/13 through 2017/18) and Construction 
Priority List (2012/13) are hereby approved as presented at the public hearing. 
 
Adopted this 2nd day of May 2012 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Shaun V. Kenney, Board of Supervisor, Chairman 
 























SUMMARY OF THE COUNTY OF FLUVANNA’S PPEA PROCEDURES 

I. Unsolicited Proposals 
a. County Administrator receives unsolicited proposal from a private entity; 
b. Private entity also sends any affected local jurisdiction copy of proposal; 
c. Proposal Review Fee to be paid by private entity, if applicable; 
d. Affected Local Jurisdictions have 60 days from receipt of any proposal to submit 

written comments, which must be considered by the County in evaluating any 
proposal; 

e. County determines to accept the unsolicited proposal for publication and 
conceptual phase consideration; or the County determines to reject the proposal 
and must return the proposal, any accompanying documentation and all fees to the 
proposer; 

f. If County accepts an unsolicited proposal for publication and conceptual phase 
consideration it must be posted and published pursuant to Section IV.A.2 (any 
references to “Section” herein refer to sections of the “Public-Private Education 
Facilities and Infrastructure Act of 2002, as Amended, County of Fluvanna, 
Amended and Restated Guidelines and Procedures, Adopted: May 2, 2012”. This 
is to give other private entities an opportunity to provide competing proposals; 

g. Conceptual Proposals (see Section VI.A for proper format) shall be posted by the 
County within 10 working days after acceptance for further consideration 
pursuant to Section IV.B; 

h. The County should determine the type of procurement procedures it would use to 
develop and operate the qualifying project pursuant to Section V.2; 

i. After reviewing the original proposal and any competing proposals, the County 
Administrator should recommend a course of action to the Board of Supervisors 
pursuant to Section V.3; 

j. If, the County decides to proceed with a proposal, then the private entity will 
submit the documentation required by the Detailed Stage, see Section VI.B; 

k. County considers the proposals using the evaluation and selection criteria of 
Section VII; 

l. County can ask a Public Private Partnership Advisory Committee to review the 
proposal(s) pursuant to Section VIII.A; 

m. County may enter into an Interim Agreement pursuant to Section IX.A if the 
Board of Supervisors deems necessary; 

n. If the County wishes to accept a proposal, then the County must work with the 
private entity to draft a comprehensive agreement pursuant to Section IX.B; 

o. Then, the County must have a public hearing on the proposal(s) received at least 
30 days prior to entering into an interim or comprehensive agreement pursuant to 
Section IX.C (including a requirement that the proposed interim or 
comprehensive agreement be published); 



p. After the public hearing, the Board of Supervisors can enter into the 
comprehensive agreement; 

q. Once an interim or comprehensive agreement has been executed and entered into, 
the County shall make procurement records available for public inspection; 

r. Any comprehensive agreement must be filed with the Auditor of Public Accounts 
II. Solicited Proposals 

a. County may issue a Request for Proposals or Initiations for Bids, inviting 
proposals under the PPEA; 

b. County Administrator receives solicited proposal from a private entity; 
c. Private entity also sends any affected local jurisdiction copy of proposal; 
d. Proposal Review Fee to be paid by private entity, if applicable; 
e. Affected Local Jurisdictions have 60 days from receipt of any proposal to submit 

written comments, which must be considered by the County in evaluating any 
proposal; 

f. County determines to accept the unsolicited proposal for publication and 
conceptual phase consideration; or the County determines to reject the proposal 
and must return the proposal, any accompanying documentation and all fees to the 
proposer; 

g. If County accepts an unsolicited proposal for publication and conceptual phase 
consideration it must be posted and published pursuant to Section IV.A.2. This is 
to give other private entities an opportunity to provide competing proposals; 

h. Conceptual Proposals (Section VI.A discusses proper format of the same) shall be 
posted by the County within 10 working days after acceptance for further 
consideration pursuant to Section IV.B; 

i. The County should determine the type of procurement procedures it would use to 
develop and operate the qualifying project pursuant to Section V.2; 

j. After reviewing the original proposal and any competing proposals, the County 
Administrator should recommend a course of action to the Board of Supervisors 
pursuant to Section V.3; 

k. If, the County decides to proceed with a proposal, then the private entity will 
submit the documentation required by the Detailed Stage, see Section VI.B; 

l. County considers the proposals using the evaluation and selection criteria of 
Section VII; 

m. County can ask a Public Private Partnership Advisory Committee to review the 
proposal(s) pursuant to Section VIII.A; 

n. County may enter into an Interim Agreement pursuant to Section IX.A if the 
Board of Supervisors deems the same necessary; 

o. If the County wishes to accept a proposal, then the County must work with the 
private entity to draft a comprehensive agreement pursuant to Section IX.B; 



p. Then, the County must have a public hearing on the proposal(s) received at least 
30 days prior to entering into an interim or comprehensive agreement pursuant to 
Section IX.C (including a requirement that the proposed interim or 
comprehensive agreement be published); 

q. After the public hearing, the Board of Supervisors can execute and enter into the 
comprehensive agreement; 

r. Once an interim or comprehensive agreement has been executed and entered into, 
the County shall make procurement records available for public inspection; and 

s. Any comprehensive agreement must be filed with the Auditor of Public Accounts. 



 1

 1 

PPEA INTERIM and COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENTS 2 

CHECKLIST1 3 

 4 

 5 

INTRODUCTION 6 
 7 

The  Public‐Private  Education  Facilities  and  Infrastructure  Act  of  2002  (the  “PPEA”)  grants 8 
responsible  public  entities  the  authority  to  create  public‐private  partnerships  for  the 9 
development of a wide range of projects for public use if the public entities determine there is a 10 
need  for  the project and  that private  involvement may provide  the project  to  the public  in a 11 
timely or cost‐effective fashion. The PPEA defines   "responsible public entity" (RPE) to  include 12 
any public entity that “has the power to develop or operate the applicable qualifying project.” 13 
Individually negotiated interim or comprehensive agreements between a private entity and an 14 
RPE define the respective rights and obligations of  the RPE and  the private entity.  It  is  in  the 15 
best  interests  of  both  the  RPE  and  the  private  entity  to  have  an  interim  or  comprehensive 16 
agreement that sufficiently lays out the rights and obligations of the parties. 17 
 18 
The PPEA provides a  list of required provisions  for comprehensive agreements  (§ 56‐575.9 of 19 
the Code of Virginia) and interim agreements (§ 56‐575.9:1 of the Code of Virginia).  In addition, 20 
the PPEA Model Guidelines Working Group has established Model PPEA Guidelines to facilitate 21 
the development of guidelines by RPEs and to assist  in the  implementation of the PPEA.   The 22 
following is a suggested list of additional provisions and items that an RPE may wish to consider 23 
for  inclusion  in  such  agreements.    This  checklist  is  separated  into  three  sections.  Section  I 24 
covers  items  that  may  be  considered  at  the  outset  of  drafting  interim  or  comprehensive 25 
agreements. Section II consists of provisions that an RPE may want to consider for inclusion in 26 
an interim or comprehensive agreement. Section III includes additional items for consideration 27 
in an individual PPEA project, as needed. 28 
 29 

Section I. The following are items an RPE may want to consider for Interim or 30 

Comprehensive Agreements. 31 

 32 

 33 
A. Check  the correct  legal name of  the entity with which  the RPE will be contracting.  34 

The  Virginia  State  Corporation  Commission  (SCC)  should  be  consulted,  telephone 35 
number 1‐866‐722‐2551, to be sure that the private entity is registered with the SCC 36 
and  is authorized  to do business  in Virginia.    If  it  is not  registered with  the SCC,  it 37 
should be required to register as quickly as possible since Virginia law requires that 38 
entities doing business in Virginia are to be registered with the SCC.  It is important 39 

                                                 
1 This PPEA checklist is based on a document titled "PPEA Interim and Comprehensive Agreements and Items to 
consider for Inclusion  in Such Agreements" prepared by Gary E. Tegenkamp, Assistant City Attorney  for the City of 
Roanoke.  Assisting Mr. Tegenkamp in developing the document were R. B. Lawhorn and Sharon Gentry, also 
Roanoke City employees. 



 2

to know the  legal entity that the RPE  is dealing with because many times a parent 40 
entity will set up a separate corporation, LLC, or Limited Partnership for a particular 41 
project to  limit the potential  liability of the parent entity.   The RPE needs to know 42 
this in order to understand what the risks are and to ensure that it gets appropriate 43 
bonds, and, in a particular case, perhaps even a guarantee from the parent entity. 44 

 45 
B. Check to be sure that the entity the RPE  is contracting to perform the work under 46 

the interim or comprehensive agreement with has a Virginia Contractor’s License, if 47 
one is required.  If for some reason the entity that the RPE is contracting with is not 48 
required  to have a Virginia Contractor’s License,  the RPE will want  to be sure  that 49 
the contractor doing  the work under  the resulting agreement does have a Virginia 50 
Contractor’s License. 51 

 52 
C. Require  that  the  private  entity  ensures  that  the  subcontractors  have  all  required 53 

Virginia  licenses  and  permits  and  are  registered with  the Virginia  SCC  if  they  are 54 
doing business in Virginia. 55 

 56 
D. Verify that the private entity and its subcontractors have any required local business 57 

licenses. 58 
 59 

E. Consider whether the RPE will require the private entity to provide that the RPE will 60 
be a third party beneficiary of the private entity’s contracts with  its subcontractors 61 
and will notify  its subcontractors of that fact.   If for some reason the private entity 62 
that  the RPE contracts with goes out of business,  terminates  the contract, or  is  in 63 
default and  is  terminated,  then  the RPE may have an argument and  the ability  to 64 
take over  the subcontracts with  the subcontractors and proceed with  the work or 65 
have  some  other  remedy  to  allow  the  project  to  continue.    In  addition,  if  some 66 
warranty  issues  arise  later,  such  a  clause may  allow  the    RPE  to  seek  a  remedy 67 
against  both  the  private  entity  and  the  subcontractor  directly,  especially  if  the 68 
private entity no longer exists because it may have been created only for the project. 69 

 70 

Section II.  The following are items that the RPE may  want  to consider for 71 

          inclusion in an Interim Agreement or a Comprehensive Agreement.2   72 
 73 

 74 
A.  Recitals and Consideration Clause    75 
 76 

(1)  The recitals are the Whereas clauses that set forth the background of the 77 
PPEA process, how  the Comprehensive Agreement was arrived at, how 78 
the RPE determined that the project is a qualifying project that serves the 79 
public purpose of  the PPEA, and other  terms  that  the RPE may want  to 80 
include. 81 

 82 

                                                 
2 The order of the items set forth below may be rearranged and additional items may be added or some of the 
items may be deleted. As to interim agreements, only some of these items may be applicable.  



 3

(2)  Next,  there should be a statement of consideration  that basically states 83 
something  similar  to,  “Therefore,  for  and  in  consideration  of  the 84 
promises  and mutual  covenants  contained  herein,  and  subject  to  the 85 
conditions set forth herein, the parties hereby covenant, agree, and bind 86 
themselves  as  follows:”  or  similar  language  to  show  consideration  and 87 
agreement to be bound by the Agreement. 88 

 89 
B.  Definitions    The  first  section  after  a  consideration  statement  should  be  a 90 

definitions section.   Since the Comprehensive Agreement usually involves many 91 
different  items,  including  design  as well  as  construction  items,  a  “Definitions” 92 
section  is  important  to  define  the  various  terms  and  how  they will  be  used 93 
throughout the Comprehensive Agreement. This  is especially the case  if a term 94 
will have a meaning that is different from the term's general use.  One important 95 
definition  is  the  “Guaranteed  Maximum  Price”  (or  some  other  pricing 96 
methodology) for the project.  However, there will usually be exceptions to that 97 
definition  that will allow an  increase  in  the Guaranteed Maximum Price under 98 
certain conditions because this involves a risk assessment and a risk acceptance 99 
by the private entity and/or the RPE since some issues cannot be anticipated in a 100 
qualifying project design and construction.   Another  important definition  is that 101 
for  “Contract  Documents”  which  should  include  the  various  exhibits  and 102 
attachments to the Agreement.  If not elsewhere in the Agreement, an order of 103 
precedence can be included in the "Contracts Documents" section. 104 

 105 
C.  General Description   This section can give a general description of the work and 106 

include  the  term  of  the  Agreement  and  the  private  entity  status  as  an 107 
independent  contractor.    Subsections  can  also  provide  for  subcontractors  and 108 
how the private entity will proceed to provide the services and work called for by 109 
the  Comprehensive  Agreement.    Since  the  term  of  the  Agreement  may  be 110 
difficult to predict because of changes and unanticipated delays,  it may be wise 111 
to  provide  that  the  term  begins  on  the  effective  date  of  the  Agreement  and 112 
continues until all obligations under the Agreement have been properly and fully 113 
performed by the private entity. 114 

 115 
D.  The Work    This  section  should  describe  the work,  the  specifications,  and  the 116 

conditions affecting  the work, as well as a  subsection on  the  interpretation of 117 
the contract documents. 118 

 119 
E.  Project Development    This  section  should  describe  the  project  development, 120 

including the design and construction of the project as well as dealing with the 121 
drawings  and  specifications  and  the  different  stages  for  submitting  design 122 
development drawings.  The RPE should note that this section may also contain a 123 
statement  that  the  private  entity  may  be  allowed  to  start  construction  in 124 
accordance  with  the  project  schedule  even  though  all  of  the  construction 125 
documents and drawings have not been approved  for the  final design.   Since a 126 
PPEA qualifying project may be a  type of design and construction combination 127 
project,  the  final  drawings  may  not  be  approved  until  after  construction  is 128 



 4

started in order to expedite the project.  This is a decision for the  RPE depending 129 
on how it wants to proceed on the particular project involved. 130 

 131 
F.  Prices    This  section  should  deal  with  the  pricing  and  how  he  price  is  to  be 132 

determined, and what changes will be allowed to the price to either increase or 133 
decrease it depending on certain conditions or developments. 134 

 135 
G.  Samples    Since most PPEA projects will  involve  construction  and  construction 136 

usually requires samples to be submitted pursuant to various specifications and 137 
drawings, a provision should be made on how samples will be approved, labeled,  138 
marked, the use of samples, the failure of any samples to pass testing, testing of 139 
samples, the cost of testing, and how samples will be inventoried.  Those can all 140 
be subsections of the Samples section. 141 

 142 
H.  Measurements,  Drawings,  Specifications    This  section  can  provide  for 143 

measurements, drawings and specifications and how those are handled.    Items 144 
to consider  include how the private entity will verify measurements and onsite 145 
documents, the requirements for the drawings and specifications and how that 146 
will  be  handled,  how  shop  drawings,  submittals,  coordination  drawings  and 147 
schedules will be handled, how  the Architect or Engineer  (A/E) will  review  the 148 
documents, and what review process the RPE as the owner will have and what 149 
approval authority  the  locality will have  for  such drawings.   The RPE may also 150 
want to include in this section the requirements for “as built” or record drawings 151 
as well as spare parts data and how that will be handled for equipment that  is 152 
furnished as part of the project. 153 

 154 
I.  Warranty   This section should involve what types of warranties the RPE will get, 155 

who  the warranties will be  from, what  type of  repairs are  involved during  the 156 
warranty period, information about manufacturer’s warranties and how they will 157 
be assigned or transferred to the   RPE.   The RPE may want to have a provision 158 
that  all warranties  are  subject  to  the  reasonable  approval  of  the  owner  since 159 
manufacturer’s  warranties  may  have  various  exclusions  and  some 160 
manufacturer’s warranties even require  indemnity requirements back  from the 161 
owner, which many localities cannot give, and so the RPE may want to deal with 162 
that with the private entity up front.  This section should also deal with repairs, 163 
transfer of warranties and a nonwaiver provision that by accepting warranties or 164 
guarantees under the Agreement, the RPE does not waive any other legal rights 165 
or remedies that the   RPE may have  for breach of the Agreement or breach of 166 
any of the warranties or guarantees. 167 

 168 
J.  Insurance, Bonds and Risk of Loss        169 
 170 

(1)  This  section  should  provide  for  the  different  types  of  bonds  that  are 171 
required, particularly  the performance bond and  the  labor and material 172 
payment  bond  that  the  private  entity  should  be  required  to  provide.  173 
Since this is usually a combined design and construction project, an issue 174 



 5

can  arise  as  to  whether  the  bond  should  be  in  the  full  price  of  the 175 
contract  or  the  comprehensive  agreement  amount  or  just  the 176 
construction  value  of  the  project.    If  such  a  project were  done  in  the 177 
normal course,  the bonds would be  for  the construction value only and 178 
not  for  the  cost  of  the A/E  services.    It  is  recommended  that  the  RPE 179 
provide sample bonds so that the bonds are  in a  form that the RPE will 180 
find acceptable and not have to be negotiated later.   181 

 182 
(2)  The  insurance  provisions  should  also  be  set  forth  in  this  section  or 183 

another  section  and  the  RPE  should  have  its  risk management  office 184 
review  the  requirements  of  the  insurance  provisions,  including  the 185 
amounts and the types of coverages that should be required.    It should 186 
be noted that many construction projects involve the use of a crane and 187 
other matters  of  that  nature,  thus  builder’s  risk  insurance  and  rigger’s 188 
liability  stating  “on hook”  coverages may be  appropriate depending on 189 
the  project  involved.    Some  localities may  wish  to  take  advantage  of 190 
recent changes in legislation that allows localities to provide builder’s risk 191 
by the   RPE.    In order to make this determination, the RPE must  look at 192 
the risks and the costs  involved and whether  it is more advantageous to 193 
have  the RPE provide  this  type of  insurance or  for  the private entity  to 194 
provide it and the possible differences in coverages and costs. 195 

 196 
(3)  An errors and omissions  subsection  should be  included  to provide  that 197 

the  private  entity  and/or  the  A/E  of  the  private  entity  maintain 198 
professional  liability  insurance  in  an  approved  amount  since  the A/E  is 199 
providing  the design services of a professional.    It should be noted  that 200 
most A/E professional  liability  insurance policies are usually on a claims 201 
made  basis  and  the    RPE's  risk  management  department  should 202 
determine how long the errors and omissions insurance should continue.   203 

 204 
(4)  This  section  should  also  contain  an  indemnification  subsection  that 205 

provides  that  the  private  entity  indemnify  and  hold  harmless  the  RPE, 206 
etc. on whatever terms the RPE wants for its indemnity clause. 207 

 208 
(5)  This section can also deal with bankruptcy issues and what happens if the 209 

private entity files for bankruptcy or is threatened with bankruptcy from 210 
the private entity’s creditors.  In addition, if a surety that may be on one 211 
of  the  bonds  files  for  bankruptcy,  then  the  private  entity  should  be 212 
required to replace the bond or  insurance policy with an equivalent one 213 
that is acceptable to the RPE. 214 

 215 
K.  Notices to Proceed, Commencement and Completion    This section should deal 216 

with the notices to proceed, the commencement of the work, and completion of 217 
the work.  Under this section the  RPE can set forth how the notices to proceed 218 
will be given, any notices of delay that may be required from the private entity, a 219 
liquidated damages clause for delay and how that will be handled, suspensions 220 
and  delays,  and  what  are  excusable  delays.    In  addition,  this  section  should 221 



 6

address the construction schedule and progress charts should be addressed, as 222 
well as any exception to the completion schedule and liquidated damages, if any 223 
are required in the particular project involved. 224 

 225 
L.  Private Entity Responsibilities   This section can deal with items such as how the 226 

performance and  superintendence of  the work by  the private entity are  to be 227 
handled, materials and workmanship matters, the responsibility for the design of 228 
the project, and the use of the premises.   Licenses, permits and responsibilities 229 
should  also  be  addressed  in  this  section  as  well  as  building  codes,  fees  and 230 
charges  for  such  items.    This  section  should  also  include dealing with  federal, 231 
state  and  local  taxes  as well  as  identification  of  contract  deliverables.   Other 232 
items that can be addressed  in this section are patent and copyright  indemnity, 233 
non‐disclosure  items,  how  heat will  be  provided  to  the  project,  any  language 234 
requirements  for  an  on‐site  superintendent,  substitute materials  or methods, 235 
advertising of awards, and any ground breaking ceremonies. 236 

 237 
M.  Owner Rights and Responsibilities    238 
 239 

(1)  This  section  can  include  the  owner’s  representative  and  how  such  a 240 
representative  is  designated,  site  visits,  the  owner‐directed  staffing 241 
changes,  examination  of  records  by  the  owner,  and  ownership  of  the 242 
work  product.    The  RPE may want  to  be  sure  that  the work  product 243 
becomes the property of the owner or RPE so that the private entity will 244 
be  required  to  include  in  its  contract  with  the  A/E  or  any  design 245 
professionals  that  they  agree  to  such  a  requirement.    Otherwise,  the 246 
locality  may  run  into  copyright  issues  from  A/Es  or  other  design 247 
professionals and whether or not the locality could use the drawings and 248 
specifications prepared by the A/E professional if something happens the 249 
A/E is no longer working on the job.  The A/E should be required to meet 250 
the  standard  of  care  in  Virginia  for  the  applicable  design  professional 251 
providing  such  design  or  services  so  there  is  no  question  about what 252 
standard of care applies.   253 

 254 
(2)  This section can also deal with surveying of monuments and benchmarks, 255 

the  owner’s  partial  occupancy  of  the  project  as  well  as  the  owned 256 
property and when the owner will take ownership of the property.  Other 257 
items  under  this  section  can  include  other  contracts  that  the  RPE  or 258 
owner may award  for parts of  the project  that  are not  included  in  the 259 
Comprehensive Agreement and the requirements that the private entity 260 
shall cooperate and coordinate with such other contractors and with the 261 
owner’s employees or other representatives since the RPE may want to 262 
do some of  the work on the project  itself or through other contractors, 263 
such as providing  furnishings  for  the project, etc.    In  certain  cases,  the 264 
RPE may wish to furnish some items for the project to the private entity 265 
and  in such situations, the RPE may want to provide that such  items are 266 
furnished “as is.” 267 

 268 



 7

N.  Administrative  Items    This  section  can  provide  some  type  of  standard  clause 269 
that  all publications or other documents,  such  as manuals, handbooks,  codes, 270 
standards, and specifications  referred  to  in  the Agreement  for  the purposes of 271 
establishing  requirements applicable  to equipment, materials, or workmanship 272 
are incorporated by reference into the Agreement, or similar type language. 273 

 274 
O.  Subcontracting    This  section  can  deal  with  subcontracts  and  how  those  are 275 

handled. 276 
 277 
P.  Protection of Persons  and Property    This  section  can  deal with  protection  of 278 

persons  and  property.   Under  this  section  items  such  as  accident  prevention, 279 
health and safety standards, protection of the environment, existing vegetation, 280 
structures, utilities and  improvements should be dealt with.    In addition, under 281 
this  section,  access  to  the  site,  handling  of  asbestos  and  other  hazardous 282 
materials,  elevator work‐qualifications,  if  appropriate,  and  other  items  of  this 283 
nature should be addressed. 284 

 285 
Q.  Payments  Under this section items such as invoices, payment, construction cost 286 

breakdown,  allowable  cost  and payment,  audit,  final payment  and other  such 287 
matters  should  be  dealt  with.    Items  related  to  retainage  should  also  be 288 
addressed in this section as well.   289 

 290 
R.  Changes/Claims/Disputes    291 
 292 

(1)  These  items  can  be  broken  into  separate  sections  or  handled  as 293 
subsections under one section, but should  include changes, whether the 294 
owner, without notice to any sureties, can require changes and that the 295 
contractor  will  proceed  to  provide  the  changes  and  how  any 296 
disagreement as to additional compensation will be handled so that both 297 
parties understand how change procedures should be handled. 298 

 299 
(2)  Under  this  section other  items can be addressed,  such as change order 300 

accounting,  equitable  adjustments,  including  cost  for  any  A/E  services, 301 
cost for development and construction, and differing site conditions.    In 302 
addition,  it  is  important  to  set out how  resolutions of disputes,  claims, 303 
and other matters should be handled and the procedures should be set 304 
out in detail. 305 

 306 
S.  Terminations    This  section  should  include  termination  for  convenience  of  the 307 

RPE, termination for default, termination for owner default, and other matters of 308 
this nature. 309 

 310 
T.  Inspection  and  Acceptance    Under  this  section,  items  such  as  inspection  of 311 

professional  services,  inspection  and  acceptance  of  the  work,  technical 312 
supervision,  approval  of  design,  project  closeout,  asbestos‐free  and  lead  free 313 
paint certifications, and like matters should be dealt with. 314 



 8

 315 
U.  Miscellaneous     316 
 317 

(1)  This  section  can address  items  that are not  covered elsewhere.   Under 318 
this  section,  items  such as  representations and warranties of authority, 319 
nondiscrimination, drug‐free workplace, notices and where and how they 320 
should  be  sent  with  the  addresses  listed,  successors  and  assigns, 321 
nonwaiver  issues,  severability,  and  counterparts  signatures  should  be 322 
addressed.    The RPE  can  also  address  the private  entity’s payments  to 323 
others,  the owner’s  right  to audit, copy, and  review  the private entity’s 324 
records  for  the  project,  the  faith‐based  statement  required  by  §  2.2‐325 
4343.1  of  the  Code  of  Virginia,  and  the  Ethics  in  Public  Contracting 326 
provisions of Virginia Code. 327 

 328 
(2)  Under  this  section or under  a  separate  section,  the RPE  should have  a 329 

governing law and forum selection provision that requires that all claims 330 
or  litigation  be  litigated  and  presented  in  the  jurisdiction  of  the  RPE, 331 
either in a state or federal court within that RPE’s jurisdiction or just in a 332 
state court, depending on how the RPE wants to handle that matter.    It 333 
should also provide  that  the  law of Virginia applies so  that no question 334 
can be  raised as  to what state’s  law applies.    It should be noted  in  this 335 
section  “that  the  law  of Virginia, without  application  of  conflict  of  law 336 
provisions, should apply.”   The RPE may want to add that all the parties 337 
voluntarily agree to submit to such jurisdiction and venue of such courts 338 
as well as the fact that the agreement shall not be construed  in favor of 339 
or against either party, but construed according to the fair meaning as if 340 
both parties  jointly prepared  the Agreement, which will usually be  the 341 
case in a PPEA matter.   342 

 343 
(3)  Other items in a miscellaneous section or a separate section may include 344 

an  annual  appropriation  and  plan  of  finance  or  subject  to  annual 345 
appropriations  clause.    Financial  statements  can  also  be  addressed  in 346 
case    an  RPE wants  the  private  entity  to  submit  financial  statements.  347 
Other items that can be set forth in a miscellaneous section or a separate 348 
section is the requirement that a copy of the Agreement needs to be sent 349 
to the Auditor of Public Accounts in accordance with the requirements of 350 
the PPEA, within 30 days after the effective date of the Agreement, or as 351 
the  PPEA may  otherwise  require.    Certification  provisions  can  also  be 352 
included  in  this  section.    Ethics  in  public  contracting  references,  that 353 
headings  are  for  convenience  only,  any  minority  and  women‐owned 354 
business  enterprise  and  small  business  certification,  and  any 355 
consequential  damage  or  limitation  of  liability  issues  can  also  be 356 
addressed in this section or in separate sections. 357 

 358 
V.  Grant Funds    If  federal, state, or other grant  funds are or may be used  for the 359 

project,    the  RPE  should  consider  incorporating  any  grant  documents  and 360 
contracts  into  the  Agreement  and  how  those  documents  may  affect  the 361 



 9

Agreement and  the project.   These  could be  items  such  as Davis‐Bacon Wage 362 
items, Buy America, and other federal and state requirements.   In addition, the 363 
RPE should consider an order of procedures that addresses such federal and/or 364 
state items. 365 

 366 
W.  Entire Agreement   This  section  should provide  that  the entire Agreement and 367 

the attachments and exhibits are  forming the entire Agreement along with the 368 
other provisions that the RPE wants to have  in the entire agreement clause.   In 369 
this type of clause, the RPE may want to include the fact that the private entity’s 370 
conceptual phase and detailed phase proposals be attached and incorporated by 371 
reference  for purposes of providing details concerning the overall  intent of the 372 
parties, but  that  such exhibit  is not  intended  to contradict  the Agreement and 373 
that in the event of any inconsistencies, the Agreement would control, if that is 374 
what  the RPE wants,  or  if  the  RPE wants  some  other  order  of  precedence  to 375 
control, the RPE can provide for that in this section. 376 

 377 
X.  Signature  Page      This  page  should  state  that  the  parties  are  signing  by  their 378 

authorized representatives or there should be a separate section that the parties 379 
signing have the authority to sign.  The RPE needs to be sure to have the proper 380 
legal name of  the private entity as well as  the RPE’s name and any witnesses 381 
and/or  certifications  of  funds  that may  be  required  by  the  RPE’s  procedures, 382 
including a notation about the ordinance number that may have authorized the 383 
Comprehensive  Agreement.    The  RPE  should  also  be  sure  that  an  authorized 384 
person of the private entity signs for the private entity.   385 

 386 

Section III.   The following are additional items an RPE may want to consider 387 

for individual PPEA projects. 388 
 389 

 390 
A.  The  RPE  should  consult  with  its  engineering  department  or  engineering 391 

consultant  as  well  as  other  appropriate  consultants  within  the  RPE,  or 392 
consultants that are retained separate from the private entity, as to how  items 393 
may be addressed in the Comprehensive Agreement such as allowances or other 394 
matters in order to guarantee a maximum price that may not exceed the amount 395 
available for the project.  There are various ways to handle this and each project 396 
will determine how the RPE and the private entity arrive at a fair price for both 397 
parties and what events will allow for either increases or decreases in that price.  398 

 399 
B.  If possible, the RPE should consider having a project manager who understands 400 

the contract and who would be  in contact with  the private entity on a  regular 401 
basis so that any issues that arise can be dealt with early and resolved in a timely 402 
manner and  to  try  to  reduce  the number of  surprises  that arise as  the project 403 
continues.   This can be beneficial to both parties and help to have a successful 404 
project. 405 

 406 



 10

C.  The RPE, if the project is sufficiently large, may want to retain a separate entity 407 
to manage the project for the RPE and be sure that the private entity complies 408 
with  the Comprehensive Agreement and  the obligations under  it.   Although an 409 
additional expense to the RPE, the cost of retaining a project manager is usually 410 
money well spent since an RPE may not have sufficient manpower or experience 411 
to  have  someone  present  on  the  job  site  on  a  daily  or  almost  daily  basis  to 412 
ensure that the RPE’s interest is being served. 413 

 414 

 415 

CONCLUSION  416 

 417 
A PPEA project and the resulting agreements are not simple matters and many  items need to 418 
be considered.  Even then, unexpected items and matters will arise throughout the project and 419 
the best method of resolving those matters is good communications among the private entity, 420 
the RPE, and any project manager or management consultant  the RPE may have  retained  to 421 
oversee the project for the RPE.   Hopefully, the above checklist will help provide some  insight 422 
and guidance for RPEs entering into PPEA projects. 423 

 424 
 425 

### 426 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 

 
 

PUBLIC-PRIVATE EDUCATION FACILITIES AND  
INFRASTRUCTURE ACT OF 2002, AS AMENDED 

 
 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED  
GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES 

 
 

Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
I.  INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................................   
II.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A.  Proposal Submission .....................................................................................................  
B.  Affected Local Jurisdictions ..........................................................................................  
C.  Proposal Review Fee ............................................................................................... 
D.   Freedom of Information Act ........................................................................................  
E.  Use of Public Funds .............................................................................................. 
F.  Applicability of Other Laws..........................................................................................  
G.  Individual Responsible to Receive Proposals and Respond to Inquiries ............. 

III.  SOLICITED PROPOSALS .....................................................................................................  
IV.  UNSOLICITED PROPOSALS ...............................................................................................  

A.  Decision to Accept and Consider Unsolicited Proposal; Notice ................................  
 B.  Posting Requirements ................................................................................................ 

V.  REVIEW OF SOLICITED AND UNSOLICITED PROPOSALS ...........................................  
VI. PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION ................................................................  

A.  Format for Submissions at Conceptual Stage (Part 1) ................................................  
1.    Qualification and Experience ...................................................................... 
2.    Project Characteristics ................................................................................. 
3.    Project Financing ......................................................................................... 
4.    Project Benefit and Compatibility ..................................................................  

B.  Format for Submissions at Detailed Stage (Part 2) ......................................................  
VII.  PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION CRITERIA .............................................  

A.  Qualifications and Experience ......................................................................................  
B.  Project Characteristics ....................................................................................................  
C.  Project Financing ...........................................................................................................  
D.  Public Benefit and Compatibility .................................................................................  
E.  Other Factors ..................................................................................................................  

VIII.  ADDITIONAL REVIEW PROCEDURES ................................................................. 
A. Public Private Partnership Advisory Committee .................................................. 
B. Appropriating Body............................................................................................... 

IX.  INTERIM AND COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENTS ...........................................................  
A.  Interim Agreement Terms ......................................................................................... 
B.  Comprehensive Agreement Terms ................................................................................  
C.   Public Hearing during Proposal Review Process .........................................................  
D. Filing of PPEA Comprehensive Agreement with Auditor of Public Accounts .... 

X.  GOVERNING PROVISIONS ...................................................................................................  
XI.  TERMS AND DEFINITIONS ....................................................................................... 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   1 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The Public-Private Education Facilities and Infrastructure Act of 2002, as amended1 (the 
“Act”, or “PPEA”) is the legislative framework enabling departments,  agencies and institutions of 
the Commonwealth of Virginia, as well as local governments and certain other public bodies, to enter 
agreements authorizing private entities (sometimes referred to herein as "private entity", 
“proposer” or "contractor") to develop and/or operate qualifying projects as defined in the Act. 
The guidelines and procedures presented in this document were developed pursuant to the 
requirements of Virginia Code Sections 56-575.3:1 and 56-575.16. These guidelines and 
procedures are to be followed by the County of Fluvanna, Virginia (sometimes referred to herein as 
"County") in reviewing, considering, approving and developing projects under the Act. The 
guidelines and procedures will also guide private entities who wish to partner with County in 
undertaking projects pursuant to the Act. 

The Act grants responsible public entities authority to create public-private partnerships for 
development of a wide range of projects for public use if the public entities determine there is a 
need for such projects and that private involvement may provide the project in a more timely or 
cost-effective fashion.  For the purposes of the PPEA, the County is a “responsible public entity” 
(“RPE”) that has the power to develop or operate the applicable qualifying project.  Individually 
negotiated interim or comprehensive agreements between a private entity and the County as an 
RPE will define the respective rights and obligations of the County and the private entity. 

In order for a project to come under the PPEA, it must meet the definition of a 
"qualifying project." The PPEA contains a broad definition of "qualifying project" that includes 
public buildings and facilities of all types, and certain infrastructure and services such as: 

(i) Any education facility, including, but not limited to a school building (including any 
stadium or other facility primarily used for school events), any functionally related 
and subordinate facility and land to a school building, and any depreciable property 
provided for use in a school facility that is operated as part of the public school 
system or as an institution of higher education;  

(ii) Any building or facility that meets a public purpose and is developed or operated by 
or for any public entity;  

(iii) Any improvements, together with equipment, necessary to enhance public safety and 
security of buildings to be principally used by a public entity;  

(iv) Utility and telecommunications and other communications infrastructure;  

(v) A recreational facility;  

(vi) Technology infrastructure, services, and applications, including, but not limited to, 
telecommunications, automated data processing, word processing and management 
information systems, and related information, equipment, goods and services;  

                                                           
1 Virginia Code Sections 56-575.1 through 56-575.18   



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   2 

(vii) Any services designed to increase productivity or efficiency through the direct or 
indirect use of technology; 

(viii)  Any technology, equipment, or infrastructure designed to deploy wireless 
broadband services to schools, businesses, or residential areas; 

(ix) Any improvements necessary or desirable to any unimproved locally- or state-
owned real estate; or 

(x) Any solid waste management facility, as defined in Virginia Code Section 10.1-
1400, that produces electric energy from solid waste. 

The County may grant approval of the development or operation of the education facility, 
technology infrastructure or other public infrastructure or government facility needed by a public 
entity as a qualifying project, or the design or equipping of a qualifying project so developed or 
operated, if the County determines that the project serves the public purpose of the PPEA.  The 
County may determine that the development or operation of the qualifying project as a qualifying 
project serves such public purpose if: (1) there is a public need for or benefit derived from the 
qualifying project of the type the private entity proposes as a qualifying project; (2) the estimated 
cost of the qualifying project is reasonable in relation to similar facilities; and, (3) the private 
entity's plans will result in the timely development or operation of the qualifying project. In 
evaluating any request, the County may rely upon internal staff reports prepared by personnel 
familiar with the operation of similar facilities or the advice of outside advisors or consultants 
having relevant experience.  

Because the PPEA is intended to encourage innovative partnerships between responsible 
public entities and private entities, the County is encouraged to maintain an open dialogue with 
private entities to discuss the need for infrastructure improvements. 

Senate Bill 1153, passed during the 2009 legislative session, provides for the review of the 
Model Guidelines of the PPEA by the working group on an annual basis and further charges that the 
working group makes revisions as needed.  In addition, the legislation charged the working group to 
develop best practices recommendations for use by RPEs.  The County has developed these revised 
guidelines by reviewing the Model Guidelines prepared by the working group and the PPEA. 

Although guidance with regard to the application of the PPEA is provided in this document, 
it is incumbent upon all entities, both public and private, to comply with the provisions of the PPEA 
and other applicable laws. These guidelines shall be interpreted in a manner to conform to the 
PPEA and, in the event that the PPEA is amended in a manner that either conflicts with these 
guidelines or concerns material matters not addressed by these guidelines, then these guidelines shall 
be interpreted in a manner to conform to the new law. 

These guidelines and procedures amend and restate the revised Fluvanna County Procedures 
previously adopted April 15, 2009.   

II. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A.    Proposal Submission 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   3 

A proposal may be either solicited by the County or delivered by a private entity on an 
unsolicited basis. Proposers are required to follow a two-part proposal submission process 
consisting of an initial conceptual phase and a detailed phase. The initial phase of the proposal 
should contain specified information on proposer qualifications and experience, project 
characteristics, project financing, anticipated public support or opposition, or both, and project 
benefit and compatibility. The detailed proposal should contain specified deliverables. 

 
The PPEA allows private entities to include innovative financing methods, including the 

imposition of user fees or service payments, in a proposal. Such financing arrangements may 
include the issuance of debt instruments, equity or other securities or obligations, including, if 
applicable, the portion of the tax-exempt private activity bond limitation amount to be allocated 
annually to the Commonwealth of Virginia pursuant, to the Economic Growth and Tax Relief 
Reconciliation Act of 2001 for the development of education facilities using public-private 
partnerships, and to provide for carryovers of any unused limitation amount. The PPEA is a 
flexible development tool that allows the use of innovative financing techniques. Depending on 
the circumstances of each transaction, financing options might include the use of special purpose 
entities, sale and lease back transactions, enhanced use leasing, property exchanges, development 
agreements, conduit financing and other methods allowed by law. 

 
Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a concise description 

of the proposer's capabilities to complete the proposed qualifying project and the benefits to be 
derived from the project by the County. Project benefits to be considered are those occurring 
during the construction, renovation, expansion or improvement phase and during the life cycle of 
the project. Proposals also should include a scope of work and a financial plan for the project, 
containing enough detail to allow an analysis by the County of the financial feasibility of the 
proposed project. The cost analysis of a proposal should not be linked solely to the financing 
plan, as the County may determine to finance the project through other available means. 

 
The County will develop clearly delineated criteria for (i) selecting among competing 

proposals and (ii) the use of accelerated documentation, review, and selection processes for 
proposals involving a qualifying project that the County deems a priority. In addition, to 
facilitate the flow of critical information, the County may establish criteria by which the 
proposer may provide clarification to a submitted proposal. 

B. Affected Local Jurisdictions 

Virginia Code Section 56-575.6 requires that any private entity requesting approval from or 
submitting a proposal to the County must provide each affected local jurisdiction a copy of the 
private entity's request or proposal. The private entity is responsible for documenting delivery of the 
request or proposal to each affected local jurisdiction; and, upon the request of the County, the private 
entity is required to provide the County proof of delivery. 

Affected local jurisdictions have sixty (60) days from the receipt of the request or proposal 
to submit written comments to the County, and to indicate whether the proposed qualifying 
project is compatible with the (i) local comprehensive plan, (ii) local infrastructure development 
plans, or (iii) capital improvements budget or other government spending plan. Comments received 
by the County within the sixty (60) day period shall be considered in evaluating the request or 
proposal; however, no negative inference shall be drawn from the absence of comment by an 
affected local jurisdiction. 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   4 

In providing the request or proposal to the affected local jurisdiction, the private entity 
may withhold information that the County has deemed to be confidential and not subject to release 
under the Freedom of Information Act, in accordance with Section II.D of these Guidelines. 

C. Proposal Review Fee 

The County shall receive an analysis of the proposal from appropriate internal staff or 
outside advisors or consultants with relevant experience in determining whether to enter into an 
agreement with the private entity. Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 56-575.3:1(C), the County 
shall engage the services of qualified professionals, which may include an architect, professional 
engineer, or certified public accountant, not otherwise employed by the responsible public entity, 
to provide independent analysis regarding the specifics, advantages, disadvantages, and the long- 
and short-term costs of any request by a private entity for approval of a qualifying project unless 
the Board of Supervisors determines that such analysis of a request by a private entity for 
approval of a qualifying project shall be performed by employees of the County.  By adopting 
these guidelines, the Board of Supervisors determines that since there are County employees who 
are professionals within the engineering and other fields, analysis of qualifying projects under 
these guidelines shall be performed by County employees unless the County Administrator 
determines there is a need for other professionals to provide analysis for a particular qualifying 
project.  The County may receive additional analysis of the proposal from appropriate internal 
staff or outside advisors or consultants with relevant experience in determining whether to enter 
into an agreement with the private entity.  The County may charge a fee to the private entity to 
cover the costs of processing, reviewing, and evaluating any unsolicited proposal or competing 
unsolicited proposal submitted under the PPEA, including a fee to cover, without limitation, the 
costs of outside professionals, attorneys, consultants, and financial, technical and other necessary 
advisors. Any fee charged for such review of a proposal should be reasonable in comparison to 
the level of expertise required to review the proposal and should not be greater than the direct 
costs associated with evaluating the proposed qualifying project. “Direct costs” may include, 
without limitation, (i) the cost of staff time required to process, evaluate, review and respond to 
the proposal and (ii) the out-of-pocket costs of attorneys, consultants, and financial, technical or 
other necessary advisors. 

The proposal fee may cover all or part of the initial review process. For example, the 
County may require a proposal fee in an amount sufficient to cover all anticipated direct costs 
associated with evaluating the proposal, or the County may require a smaller initial processing 
fee with an additional proposal fee to be charged should the project proceed beyond the initial 
review. If the cost of reviewing the proposal exceeds the initially established proposal fee, the 
County may assess the proposer the additional costs deemed necessary to evaluate the proposal. 

No fee will be charged by County to process, review or evaluate any solicited proposal 
submitted under the PPEA. 

If the County chooses to proceed with evaluation of proposal(s) under the PPEA, it shall not 
do so until the entire proposal review fee charged, if any, has been paid to the County in full. 

As noted in Section IV.A.1 below, if the County determines not to accept the proposal 
and proceed to publication and conceptual-phase consideration, it will return the proposal, 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   5 

together with all fees and accompanying documentation, to the proposer. 

D. Freedom of Information Act 

1. General applicability of disclosure provisions. 
 
Proposal documents submitted by private entities are generally subject to the Virginia 

Freedom of Information Act ("FOIA") except that subdivision 11 of § 2.2-3705.6 exempts 
certain documents from public disclosure. FOIA exemptions, however, are discretionary, and the 
County may elect to release some or all of documents except to the extent the documents are: 

a. Trade secrets of the private entity as defined in the Uniform Trade Secrets Act (§ 59.1-
336 et. seq.); 

b. Financial records of the private entity that are not generally available to the public 
through regulatory disclosure or otherwise, including but not limited to, balance sheets and 
financial statements; or 

c. Other information submitted by a private entity, where if the record or document were 
made public prior to the execution of an interim or comprehensive agreement the financial 
interest or bargaining position of the public or private entity would be adversely affected. 

Additionally, to the extent access to proposal documents submitted by private entities are 
compelled or protected from disclosure by a court order, the County must comply with the 
provisions of such order. 

The County may contact the Freedom of Information Act Council (FOIAC) regarding the 
applicability of the access provisions of FOIA: 

 
General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor Telephone: 804/225-3056 
910 Capitol Street Richmond, VA 23219      Toll-Free: 1-866-448-4100 
Email: foiacouncil@leg.state.va.us  Facsimile: 804/371-8705 
 
2. Protection from mandatory disclosure for certain documents submitted by a 

private entity. 
 

Before a document of a private entity may be withheld from disclosure, the private entity 
must make a written request to the County at the time the documents are submitted designating 
with specificity the documents for which the protection is being sought and a clear statement of 
the reasons for invoking the protection with reference to one or more of three classes of records 
listed in Section II.D.1. 

 
Upon the receipt of a written request for protection of documents, the County shall 

determine whether the documents contain (i) trade secrets, (ii) financial records, or (iii) other 
information that would adversely affect the financial interest or bargaining position 1 of the 
County or private entity in accordance with Section II.D.l. The County shall make a written 
determination of the nature and scope of the protection to be afforded by the County under this 
subdivision. If the written determination provides less protection than requested by the private 
entity, the private entity should be accorded an opportunity to withdraw its proposal. Nothing 

mailto:foiacouncil@leg.state.va.us


Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   6 

shall prohibit further negotiations of the documents to be accorded protection from release 
although what may be protected must be limited to the categories of records identified in Section 
II.D.l . 

 
Once a written determination has been made by the County, the documents afforded 

protection under this subdivision shall continue to be protected from disclosure when in the 
possession of the County or any affected jurisdiction to which such documents are provided. 

 
If a private entity fails to designate trade secrets, financial records, or other confidential 

or proprietary information for protection from disclosure, such information, records or 
documents shall be subject to disclosure under FOIA. 

 
3. Protection from mandatory disclosure for certain documents produced by the 

County. 
 

The County may withhold from disclosure memoranda, staff evaluations, or other records 
prepared by the County, its staff, outside advisors, or consultants exclusively for the evaluation 
and negotiation of proposals where (i) if such records were made public prior to or after the 
execution of an interim or a comprehensive agreement, the financial interest or bargaining 
position of the County would be adversely affected, and (ii) the basis for the determination 
required in clause (i) is documented in writing by the County. 

 
Cost estimates relating to a proposed procurement transaction prepared by or for the 

County shall not be open to public inspection. 
 
4. The County may not withhold from public access: 
(a) procurement records other than those subject to the written determination of the 

County; 
 

(b) information concerning the terms and conditions of any interim or comprehensive 
agreement, service contract, lease, partnership, or any agreement of any kind entered into by the 
County and the private entity; 

(c) information concerning the terms and conditions of any financing arrangement that 
involves the use of any public funds; or 

(d) information concerning the performance of any private entity developing or operating 
a qualifying transportation facility or a qualifying project. 

 
However, to the extent that access to any procurement record or other document or 

information is compelled or protected by a court order, then the County must comply with such 
order. 

 

E. Use of Public Funds 

Virginia constitutional and statutory requirements and County ordinances and policies as 
they apply to appropriation and expenditure of public funds apply to any interim or 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   7 

comprehensive agreement entered into by the County under the PPEA.  Accordingly, the 
processes and procedural requirements associated with the expenditure or obligation of public 
funds shall be incorporated into planning for any PPEA project or projects. 

F. Applicability of Other Laws 

Nothing in the PPEA shall affect the duty of the County to comply with all other 
applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and rules not in conflict with the PPEA. 
Likewise, in submitting proposals and in developing, executing or operating facilities under the 
PPEA, private entities shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations 
and rules.  The applicability of the Virginia Public Procurement Act (the "VPPA") is as set forth 
in the PPEA.  Once an interim or comprehensive agreement has been executed, the County shall 
make available, upon request, procurement records in accordance with Virginia Code Section 
2.2-4342. 

G. Individual Responsible to Receive Proposals and Respond to Inquiries 

The County representative assigned the responsibility of receiving proposals under the 
PPEA and also to respond to inquiries as well as hold informational meetings and to insure fair 
treatment of all who submit a proposal is:   County Administrator, County of Fluvanna, County 
Administration Building, 132 Main Street, P. O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963; Phone:  (434) 
591-1910; Fax:  (434) 591-1911. 

III. SOLICITED PROPOSALS 

The County may issue Requests for Proposals (RFPs) or Invitations for Bids (IFBs), 
inviting proposals from private entities to develop or operate qualifying projects. The County 
uses a two-part proposal process consisting of an initial conceptual phase and a detailed phase. 
An RFP/IFB may invite proposers to submit proposals on individual projects identified by the 
County. In such a case the County will set forth in the RFP/IFB the format and supporting 
information that is required to be submitted, consistent with the provisions of the PPEA. The 
County may establish suggested timelines for selecting proposals for the review and selection of 
solicited proposals. 

 
The RFP/IFB must specify, but not necessarily be limited to, information and documents 

that must accompany each proposal and the factors that will be used in evaluating the submitted 
proposals.  The RFP/IFB also should contain or incorporate by reference any applicable terms 
and conditions, and should specify any unique capabilities or qualifications that will be required 
of private entities.  Prep-proposal conferences may be held as deemed appropriate by the 
County. 

  
The RFP/IFB should be posted in such public areas as are normally used for posting of 

the County's notices, including the County's website. Notices should also be published in a 
newspaper or other publications of general circulation and advertised in Virginia Business 
Opportunities and posted on the Commonwealth's electronic procurement site. In addition, 
solicited proposals should be posted pursuant to Section IV.B. The RFP should also contain or 
incorporate by reference other applicable terms and conditions, including any unique 
capabilities or qualifications that will be required of the private entities submitting proposals. 
Pre-proposal conferences may be held as deemed appropriate by the County. 
 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   8 

IV. UNSOLICITED PROPOSALS 
 
The PPEA permits the County to receive, evaluate and select for negotiations unsolicited 

proposals from private entities to develop or operate a qualifying project. 
 
The County may publicize its needs and may encourage interested parties to submit 

unsolicited proposals subject to the terms and conditions of the PPEA. When such proposals are 
received without issuance of an RFP/IFB, the proposal shall be treated as an unsolicited 
proposal. The County may establish suggested timelines for selecting proposals for the review 
and selection of unsolicited proposals.  Unsolicited proposals should be submitted to the County 
Administrator, and the delivery should be confirmed for the proposer by written receipt. 

A. Decision to Accept and Consider Unsolicited Proposal; Notice 

1.   Upon receipt of any unsolicited proposal or group of proposals and payment of 
any required fee by the proposer or proposers, the County should determine whether to accept 
the unsolicited proposal for the purpose of publication and conceptual-phase consideration. If the 
County determines not to accept the proposal and proceed to publication and conceptual-phase 
consideration, it will return the proposal, together with all fees and accompanying 
documentation, to the proposer.  The County reserves the right to reject any and all proposals at 
any time.  Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 56-575.3(D), if the County rejects a proposal 
initiated by a private entity that purports to develop specific cost savings, then the County shall 
specify the basis for the rejection. 

2.   If the County chooses to accept an unsolicited proposal for publication and 
conceptual-phase consideration, it shall post a notice in a public area regularly used by the 
County for posting of public notices for a period of not less than forty-five (45) days. The 
County shall also publish the same notice for a period of not less than forty-five (45) days in one 
or more newspapers or periodicals of general circulation in the jurisdiction to notify any parties 
that may be interested in submitting competing unsolicited proposals. In addition, the notice 
should be advertised in Virginia Business Opportunities and on the Commonwealth's electronic 
procurement website. The notice shall state that the County (i) has received an unsolicited 
proposal under the PPEA, (ii) intends to evaluate the proposal, (iii) may negotiate an interim or 
comprehensive agreement with the proposer based on the proposal, and (iv) will receive for 
simultaneous consideration any competing proposals that comply with the procedures adopted by 
the County and the PPEA. The notice also shall summarize the proposed qualifying project or 
projects, and identify their proposed locations.   

To ensure that sufficient information is available upon which to base the development of 
a serious competing proposal, representatives of the County familiar with the unsolicited 
proposal and the guidelines established by the County shall be made available to respond to 
inquiries and meet with private entities that are considering the submission of a competing 
proposal. The County shall conduct an analysis of the information pertaining to the proposal 
included in the notice to ensure that such information sufficiently encourages competing 
proposals. Further, the County shall establish criteria, including key decision points and 
approvals to ensure proper consideration of the extent of competition from available private 
entities prior to selection. 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   9 

3.   Prior to posting of the notices provided for in this subsection, the County shall 
receive from the initial proposer(s) the balance due, of the required project proposal review fee. 

 

B. Posting Requirements 

1. Conceptual proposals, whether solicited or unsolicited, shall be posted by the 
County within ten (10) working days after acceptance of such proposals for further consideration 
in the following manner:  Posting shall be on the County’s website or by publication, in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the area in which the contract is to be performed, of a 
summary of the proposals and the location where copies of the proposals are available for public 
inspection. Posting may also be on the Department of General Service's web-based electronic 
procurement program commonly known as "eVA," in the discretion of the County 

2. Nothing shall be construed to prohibit the posting of the conceptual proposals by 
additional means deemed appropriate by the County so as to provide maximum notice to the 
public of the opportunity to inspect the proposals.  

3. In addition to the posting requirements, at least one copy of the proposals shall be 
made available for public inspection. Trade secrets, financial records, or other records of the 
private entity excluded from disclosure under the provisions of subdivision 11 of Virginia Code 
Section 2.2-3705.6 shall not be required to be posted, except as otherwise agreed to by the 
County and the private entity. Any inspection of procurement transaction records shall be subject 
to reasonable restrictions to ensure the security and integrity of the records.     
 

V. REVIEW OF SOLICITED AND UNSOLICITED PROPOSALS 

1.  Only proposals complying with the requirements of the PPEA that contain 
sufficient information for a meaningful evaluation and that are provided in an appropriate format will 
be considered by the County for further review at the conceptual stage. Formatting suggestions for 
proposals at the conceptual stage are found at Section VI.A. 

2.   The County will determine at the initial review stage (conceptual stage) whether it 
will proceed using:  

a. Standard procurement procedures consistent with procurement through competitive 
sealed bidding, as defined in Virginia Code Section 2.2-4301 and subsection B of 2.2-
4310, under the Virginia Public Procurement Act2; 

b. For professional services, standard procurement procedures consistent with 
procurement of “professional services” through competitive negotiation, as defined 
in Virginia Code Section 2.2-4301 and subsection B of 2.2-4310,  under the Virginia 
Public Procurement Act; or 

c. Standard procurement procedures consistent with procurement of “other than 
professional services” through competitive negotiation, as defined in Virginia Code 

                                                           
2 Virginia Code Section 2.2-4300 et seq.   



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   10 

Section 2.2-4301 and subsection B of 2.2-4310, under the Virginia Public 
Procurement Act.  The County may proceed using such procedures only if it makes a 
written determination that doing so is likely to be advantageous to the County and the 
public based upon (i) the probable scope, complexity or priority of the project; (ii) 
risk sharing, including guaranteed cost or completion guarantees, added value or 
debt or equity investments proposed by the private entity; or (iii) an increase in 
funding, dedicated revenue source or other economic benefit that would not otherwise 
be available.  When using such procedures, the County shall not be required to select 
the proposal with the lowest price offer, but may consider price as one factor in 
evaluating the proposals received. Other factors that may be considered include (i) 
the proposed cost of the qualifying facility; (ii) the general reputation, industry 
experience, and financial capacity of the private entity; (iii) the proposed design of 
the qualifying project; (iv) the eligibility of the facility for accelerated selection, 
review, and documentation timelines under the County's guidelines; (v) local 
citizen and government comments; (vi) benefits to the public; (vii) the private 
entity's compliance with a minority business enterprise participation plan or good 
faith effort to comply with the goals of such plan; (viii) the private entity's plans to 
employ local contractors and residents; and (ix) other criteria that the County 
deems appropriate. 

The County may adopt other guidelines and procedures consistent with Virginia Code 
Section 56-575.16.    

3. After reviewing the original proposal and any competing proposals submitted during the 
notice period, the County Administrator may recommend to the Board of Supervisors: 

(i)         not to proceed further with any proposal; 

(ii)        to proceed to the detailed (Part 2) stage of review with the original proposal; 

(iii) to proceed to the detailed (Part 2) stage with a competing proposal; 

(iv) to proceed to the detailed (Part 2) stage with multiple proposals; or 

(v) to request modifications or amendments to any proposals. 

The Board of Supervisors shall approve, in writing, the course of action to be implemented 
by the County, after considering any recommendation of the County Administrator. 

In the event that more than one proposal will be considered in the detailed (Part 2) phase of 
review, the County shall determine whether the unsuccessful private entity, or entities, shall be 
reimbursed, in whole or in part, for costs incurred in the detailed stage of review. In such case, 
reasonable costs may be assessed to the successful proposer as part of any ensuing interim or 
comprehensive agreement. 

4. Discussions between the County and a private entity about the need for 
infrastructure improvements shall not inhibit the County's ability to employ other procurement 
procedures to meet such needs. The County retains the right to reject any proposal at any time, 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   11 

without penalty, prior to the execution of an interim or comprehensive agreement.  Pursuant to 
Virginia Code Section 56-575.3(D), if the County rejects a proposal initiated by a private entity 
that purports to develop specific cost savings, then the County shall specify the basis for the 
rejection. 

VI.         PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION 

A. Format for Submissions at Conceptual Stage (Part 1) 

Proposals at the conceptual stage must contain information in the following areas: (i) 
qualifications and experience, (ii) project characteristics, (iii) project financing, (iv) anticipated 
public support or opposition, or both, (v) project benefit and compatibility and (vi) any 
additional information as the County may reasonably request to comply with the requirements of 
the PPEA. Suggestions for formatting information to be included in proposals at this stage 
include the items listed below, as well as any additional information or documents that County 
may request: 

 
1. Qualification and Experience 

a. Identify the legal structure of the firm or consortium of firms making the proposal. 
Identify the organizational structure for the project, the management approach and 
how each partner and major subcontractor in the structure fits into the overall 
team. 

b. Describe the experience of the firm or consortium of firms making the proposal 
and the key principals involved in the proposed project including experience with 
projects of comparable size and complexity. Describe the length of time in 
business, business experience, public sector experience and other engagements of 
the firm or consortium of firms. Include the identity of any firms that will provide 
design, construction and completion guarantees and warranties, and a description 
of such guarantees and warranties. 

c. Provide the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of persons within the firm or 
consortium of firms who may be contacted for further information. 

d. Provide a current or most recently audited financial statement of the firm or firms 
and each partner with an equity interest of twenty percent or greater. 

e. Identify any persons known to the proposer who would be obligated to disqualify 
themselves from participation in any transaction arising from or in connection to 
the project pursuant to the Virginia State and Local Government Conflict of 
Interest Act, Chapter 31 (§ 2.2-3100 et seq.) of Title 2.2. 

 
2. Project Characteristics 

a. Provide a description of the project, including the conceptual design. Describe the 
proposed project in sufficient detail so that type and intent of the project, the 
location, and the communities that may be affected are clearly identified. 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   12 

b. Identify and fully describe any work to be performed by the County. 

c. Include a list of all federal, state, and local permits and approvals required for the 
project and a schedule for obtaining such permits and approvals. 

d. Identify any anticipated adverse social, economic, and environmental impacts of 
the project. Specify the strategies or actions to mitigate known impacts of the 
project. 

e. Identify the projected positive social, economic, and environmental impacts of the 
project. 

f. Identify the proposed schedule for the work on the project, including the estimated 
time for completion. 

g. Propose allocation of risk and liability for work completed beyond the agreement's 
completion date, and assurances for timely completion of the project. 

h. State assumptions related to ownership, legal liability, law enforcement, and 
operation of the project and the existence of any restrictions on the County's use 
of the project. 

 
i. Provide information relative to phased or partial openings of the proposed 

project prior to completion of the entire work. 
 
j.       List any other assumptions relied on for the project to be successful. 
 
k.      List any contingencies that must occur for the project to be successful. 
 
3. Project Financing 

a. Provide a preliminary estimate and estimating methodology of the cost of the 
work by phase, segment, or both. 

b. Submit a plan for the development, financing, and operation of the project 
showing the anticipated schedule on which funds will be required. Describe the 
anticipated costs of and proposed sources and uses for such funds including any 
anticipated debt service costs. The operational plan should include appropriate 
staffing levels and associated costs. Include supporting due diligence studies, 
analyses, or reports. 

c. Include a list and discussion of assumptions underlying all major elements of the 
plan. Assumptions should include all significant fees associated with financing 
given the recommended financing approach. In addition complete disclosure of 
interest rate assumptions should be included. Any ongoing operational fees, if 
applicable, should also be disclosed as well as any assumptions with regard to 
increases in such fees. 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   13 

d. Identify the proposed risk factors and methods for dealing with these factors. 

e. Identify any local, state, or federal resources that the proposer contemplates 
requesting for the project. Describe the total commitment, if any, expected from 
governmental sources and the timing of any anticipated commitment. Such 
disclosure should include any direct or indirect guarantees or pledges of the 
County's credit or revenue. 

f. Identify the amounts and the terms and conditions for any revenue sources. 

g. Identify any aspect of the project that could disqualify the project from obtaining 
tax-exempt financing. 

 
4. Project Benefit and Compatibility 

a. Identify who will benefit from the project, how they will benefit, and how the 
project will benefit the overall community, region, or state. 

b. Identify any anticipated public support or opposition, as well as any anticipated 
government support or opposition, for the project. 

c. Explain the strategy and plans that will be carried out to involve and inform the 
general public, business community, and governmental agencies in areas affected 
by the project. 

d. Describe the anticipated significant benefits to the community, region or state, 
including anticipated benefits to the economic condition of the County and 
whether the project is critical to attracting or maintaining competitive industries 
and businesses to the County or the surrounding region. 

e. Describe compatibility with the local comprehensive plan, local infrastructure 
development plans, the capital improvements budget, or other government 
spending plan. 

f. Provide a statement setting forth participation efforts that are intended to be 
undertaken in connection with this project with regard to the following types of 
businesses: (i) minority-owned businesses, (ii) woman-owned businesses, and (iii) 
small businesses. 

 B. Format for Submissions at Detailed Stage (Part 2) 

If the County decides to proceed to the detailed stage (Part 2) with one or more proposals, each 
selected private entity must provide the following information, where applicable, unless the 
County waives the requirement or requirements: 

1. A topographical map (1:2,000 or other appropriate scale) depicting the location of the 
proposed project; 

2. A description of the qualifying project, including the conceptual design of such 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   14 

facility or facilities or a conceptual plan for the provision of services or technology 
infrastructure, and a schedule for the initiation of and completion of the qualifying 
project to include the proposed major responsibilities and timeline for activities to be 
performed by both the County and the private entity; 

3. A statement and strategy setting out the method by which the private entity 
proposes to secure all necessary property interests required for the qualifying 
project.   The statement must include the names and addresses, if known, of the 
current owners of the subject property as well as a list of any property the proposer 
intends to request the public entity to condemn; 

4. Information relating to the current plans for development of facilities or 
technology infrastructure to be used by a public entity that are similar to the 
qualifying project being proposed by the private entity, if any, of each affected 
local jurisdiction; 

5. A list of all permits and approvals required for the qualifying project from local, 
state, or federal agencies and a projected schedule for obtaining such permits and 
approvals; 

6. A list of public utility facilities, if any, that will be crossed by the qualifying project 
and a statement of the plans of the proposer to accommodate such crossings; 

7. A statement setting forth the private entity’s general plans for financing of the 
qualifying project including the sources of the private entity’s funds and identification 
of any dedicated revenue source or proposed debt or equity investment on behalf of 
the private entity; 

8. The names and addresses of the persons who may been contacted for additional 
information concerning the request; 

9. User fees, lease payments, and other service payments over the term of the interim or 
comprehensive agreement pursuant to Virginia Code Section 56-575.9 or 56.575.9:1 
and the methodology and circumstances for changes to such user fees, lease payments, 
and other service payments over time; 

10. A detailed listing of all firms, along with their relevant experience and abilities, that 
will provide specific design, construction and completion guarantees and warranties, 
and a brief description of such guarantees and warranties along with a record of any 
prior defaults for performance; 

11. A total life-cycle cost specifying methodology and assumptions of the project or 
projects and the proposed project start date.  Include anticipated commitment of all 
parties; equity, debt, and other financing mechanisms; and a schedule of project 
revenues and project costs. The life-cycle cost analysis should include, but not be 
limited to, a detailed analysis of the projected return, rate of return, or both, 
expected useful life of facility and estimated annual operating expenses using any 
relevant County adopted service levels or standards; 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   15 

12. A detailed discussion of assumptions regarding user fees or rates and usage of the 
projects; 

13. Identification and discussion of any known government support or opposition, or 
general public support or opposition for the project.  Government or public 
support should be demonstrated through resolution of official bodies, minutes of 
meetings, letters, or other official communications; 

14. Demonstration of consistency with appropriate County and affected local 
jurisdiction  comprehensive  plans (including related environmental, land use, and 
facility standards ordinances, if applicable), infrastructure development plans, 
transportation plans, the capital improvement plan and capital budget, or indication of 
the steps required for acceptance into such plans; 

15. Explanation of how the proposed project would impact local development plans 
of each affected local jurisdiction; 

16. Identification of the executive management and the officers and directors of the firm 
or firms submitting the proposal. In addition, identification of any known conflicts of 
interest or other disabilities that may impact the public entity's consideration of the 
proposal, including the identification of any persons known to the proposer who 
would be obligated to disqualify themselves from participation in any transaction 
arising from or in connection to the project pursuant to The Virginia State and Local 
Government Conflict of Interest Act, Chapter 31 (Section 2.2-3100 et seq.) of Title 
2.2, Code of Virginia; and 

17. Additional material and information as the County may request. 

VII.       PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION CRITERIA 

In selecting proposals, the County must consider all relevant information from both the 
Conceptual Stage and the Detailed Stage and there are several other factors that the County may 
wish to consider when evaluating and selecting a proposal under the PPEA.  The following are 
some factors that may be considered by the County in the evaluation and selection of PPEA 
proposals: 

 A. Qualifications and Experience 

To determine whether the proposer possesses the requisite qualifications and experience, 
factors to consider in review of either phase should include: 

1. Experience, training and preparation with similar projects; 

2. Demonstration of ability to perform work; 

3. Leadership structure; 

4. Project manager's experience; 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   16 

5. Management approach; 

6. Financial condition; and 

7. Project ownership. 

 B. Project Characteristics 

Factors to consider in determining the project characteristics include: 

1. Project definition; 

2. Proposed project schedule; 

3. Operation of the project; 

4. Technology, technical feasibility; 

5. Conformance with applicable laws, regulations, codes, guidelines and standards; 

6. Environmental impacts; 

7. Condemnation impacts; 

8. State and local permits; and 

9. Maintenance of the project. 

 C. Project Financing 

Factors to be considered in determining whether the proposed project financing allows 
adequate access to the necessary capital to finance the project include: 

1. Cost and cost benefit to the County; 

2. Financing and the impact on the debt or debt burden of the County; 

3. Financial  plan,   including   overall  feasibility   and  reliability   of plan; the 
private entity's past performance with similar plans and similar projects; degree to 
which the private entity has conducted due diligence investigation and analysis of 
proposed financial plan and results of any such inquiries or studies; 

4. Opportunity cost assessment; 

5. Estimated cost;  

6. Life-cycle cost; 

7. The identity, credit history, and past performance of any third party that will 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   17 

provide financing for the project and the nature and timing of their commitment, as 
applicable; and 

7. Such other items as the County deems appropriate. 

The County may elect to accept the private entity's financing proposal or may select its own 
finance team, source, and financing vehicle.  In the event that any project, or portion thereof, is 
financed through the issuance of obligations that are deemed to be tax-supported debt of the County, 
or if financing such a project may impact the County’s debt rating or financial position, the County 
may select its own finance team, source, and financing vehicle. 

 D. Public Benefit and Compatibility 

Factors to be considered in determining the proposed project's compatibility with the 
appropriate local or regional comprehensive or development plans include: 

2. Community benefits; 

3. Community support or opposition, or both; 

4. Public involvement strategy; 

5. Compatibility with existing and planned facilities; and 

6. Compatibility with local, regional, and state economic development efforts. 

E. Other Factors 

Other factors that may be considered in the evaluation and selection of PPEA proposals 
include: 

1. The proposed cost of the qualifying project; 

2. The general reputation, industry experience, and financial capacity of the 
private entity; 

3. The proposed design of the qualifying project; 

4. The eligibility of the project for accelerated documentation, review, and 
selection; 

5. Local citizen and government comments; 

6. Benefits to the public, including financial and nonfinancial; 

7. The private entity's compliance with a minority business plan, enterprise 
participation plan or good faith effort to comply with the goals of such plan; 

8. The private entity's plan to employ local contractors and residents; and 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   18 

9. Other criteria that the County deems appropriate. 

VIII.  ADDITIONAL REVIEW PROCEDURES 

 A.  Public Private Partnership Advisory Committee 

The County may establish criteria to trigger establishment of an advisory committee 
consisting of representatives of the Board of Supervisors, County staff and County Citizens to 
review the terms of the proposed interim or comprehensive agreement. The criteria should 
include, but not be limited to, the scope, total cost and duration of the proposed project, and 
whether the project involves or impacts multiple public entities. Timelines for the work of the 
committee should be developed and made available to proposers. 

 B.  Appropriating Body 

If the responsible public entity for appropriating or authorizing funding to pay for a 
qualifying project is different from the responsible public entity reviewing or approving the 
project, then the responsible public entity reviewing or approving the project should establish a 
mechanism for that appropriating body to review any proposed interim or comprehensive 
agreement prior to execution. When a school board is the responsible public entity, the school 
board may enter into an interim or comprehensive agreement only with the approval of the Board 
of Supervisors. 

IX. INTERIM AND COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENTS 

Prior to developing or operating the qualifying project, the selected private entity shall 
enter into a comprehensive agreement with the County. Prior to entering a comprehensive 
agreement, an interim agreement may be entered into that permits a private entity to perform 
compensable activities related to the project. The County may designate a working group to be 
responsible for negotiating any interim or comprehensive agreement. Any interim or 
comprehensive agreement shall define the rights and obligations of the County and the selected 
proposer with regard to the project.   

The County shall not accept liability for any part or phase of a project prior to entering into a 
properly executed interim or comprehensive agreement. The Board of Supervisors of the County 
shall review and approve any interim or comprehensive agreement pursuant to the PPEA prior to 
execution.  Any studies and analyses considered by the County in its review of a proposal shall 
be disclosed to the Board of Supervisors at some point prior to the execution of an interim or 
comprehensive agreement.  In connection with its approval of a qualifying project, the County shall 
establish a date for the commencement of activities relating to the qualifying project.  The County 
may extend such date from time to time.   

Any changes in the terms of an executed interim or comprehensive agreement shall be in the 
form of a written amendment. 

A. Interim Agreement Terms 

Interim agreements may be used when it is necessary or advisable to segment a project to 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   19 

produce distinct and clear deliverables necessary to keep the project moving towards 
development of a comprehensive agreement. An interim agreement may not be used to have the 
County assume risks that should be assumed by the proposer or to pay costs attributable to the 
private entity's efforts in making the proposal. Interim agreements require the same level of 
approval as Comprehensive Agreements. 

The scope of an interim agreement may include, but is not limited to: 

1. Project planning and development; 

2. Design and engineering; 

3. Environmental analysis and mitigation; 

4. Survey; 

5. Ascertaining the availability of financing for the proposed facility(ies) through 
financial and revenue analysis; 

6. Establishing a process and timing of the negotiation of the comprehensive agreement; 
and 

7. Any other provisions related to any aspect of the development or operation of a 
qualifying project that the parties may deem appropriate prior to the execution of a 
comprehensive agreement. 

Development of an interim agreement is in the sole discretion of the Board of Supervisors of 
the County and in no way limits the rights reserved by the County to terminate the evaluation of any 
or all proposals at any time. 

B. Comprehensive Agreement Terms 

The scope of the comprehensive agreement shall include but not be limited to: 

1. The delivery of maintenance, performance and payment bonds or letters of credit in 
connection with any acquisition, design, development, construction, improvement, 
renovation, expansion, equipping, maintenance, or operation of the qualifying 
project, in the forms and amounts satisfactory to the County and in compliance with 
Virginia Code Section 2.2-4337 for those components of the qualifying project that 
involve construction; 

2. The review and approval of plans and specifications for the qualifying project by the 
County.  This shall not be construed as requiring the private entity to complete design of 
a qualifying project prior to the execution of a comprehensive agreement; 

3. The rights of the County to inspect the qualifying project to ensure the private 
entity’s activities are acceptable to the County in compliance with the 
comprehensive agreement and any development plans and specifications; 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   20 

4. The maintenance of a policy or policies of public liability insurance or self-
insurance (copies of which shall be furnished to the County accompanied by proofs 
of coverage), each in form and amount satisfactory to the County and reasonably 
sufficient to insure coverage of the project and the tort liability to the public and 
employees and to enable the continued operation of the qualifying project; 

5. The monitoring of the practices of the private entity by the County to ensure that 
the qualifying project is properly maintenance; 

6. Reimbursement to be paid to the County by the private entity for services 
provided by the County, and the specific terms relating thereto; 

7. The   policy   and   procedures that will govern the rights and responsibilities of the 
County and the private entity in the event that the comprehensive agreement is 
terminated or there is a material default by the private entity including the conditions 
governing assumption of the duties and responsibilities of the private entity by the 
County and the transfer or purchase of property or other interests of the private entity 
by the County; 

8. The terms under which the private entity will file appropriate financial statements on 
a periodic basis; 

9. The mechanism by which user fees, lease payments, or service payments, if any, 
may be established from time to time upon agreement of the parties. Any payments or 
fees shall be set at a level that is the same for persons using the facility under like 
conditions and that will not materially discourage use of the qualifying project; 

a. A copy of any service contract shall be filed with the County. 

b. A schedule of the current user fees or lease payments shall be made available 
by the private entity to any member of the public upon request. 

c. Classifications according to reasonable categories for assessment of user fees 
may be made. 

10. The terms and conditions under which the County may be required to contribute 
financial resources, if any; 

11. The terms and conditions under which existing site conditions will be addressed, 
including identification of the party responsible for conducting assessments and 
taking necessary remedial action; 

12. The terms and conditions under which the County will be required to pay money to the 
private entity and the amount of any such payments for the project; 

13. The duties of the private entity under the PPEA; 

14. Other requirements of the PPEA or other applicable law; and 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   21 

15. Such other terms and conditions as the County may deem appropriate. 

The comprehensive agreement may provide for the development or operation of phases 
or segments of a qualifying project. 

Parties submitting proposals understand that representations, information and data supplied 
in support of or in connection with proposals play a critical role in the competitive evaluation 
process and in the ultimate selection of a proposal by the County. Accordingly, as part of the 
Comprehensive Agreement, the prospective contractor and its team members shall certify that all 
material representations, information and data provided in support of, or in connection with, a 
proposal is true and correct. Such certifications shall be made by authorized individuals who have 
knowledge of the information provided in the proposal. In the event that material changes occur 
with respect to any representations, information or data provided for a proposal, the prospective 
contractor shall immediately notify the County of same. Any violation of this section of the 
Comprehensive Agreement shall give the County the right to terminate the Agreement, withhold 
payment or other consideration due, and seek any other remedy available under the law. 

C. Public Hearing during Proposal Review Process 

1. At some point during the proposal review process, but at least thirty (30) days 
prior to entering into an interim or comprehensive agreement, the County shall 
hold a public hearing on the proposals that have been received. 

2.  Once the negotiation phase for the development of an interim or a comprehensive 
agreement is complete, but before an interim agreement or a comprehensive 
agreement is entered into, the County shall post the proposed agreement in the 
following manner: 

a.  Posting shall be on the County’s website or by publication, in a newspaper 
of general circulation in the area in which the contract is to be performed, 
of a summary of the agreement and the location where copies of the 
agreement are available for public inspection. Posting may also be on the 
Department of General Service's web-based electronic procurement 
program commonly known as "eVA," in the discretion of the County. 

b.  In addition to the posting requirements, at least one copy of the agreement 
shall be made available for public inspection. Trade secrets, financial 
records, or other records of the private entity excluded from disclosure 
under the provisions of subdivision 11 of Virginia Code Section 2.2-
3705.6 shall not be required to be posted, except as otherwise agreed to by 
the County and the private entity.   

c. Any studies and analyses considered by the County in its review of a 
proposal shall be disclosed to the appropriating body at some point prior to 
the execution of an interim or comprehensive agreement. 

3.    Once an interim agreement or a comprehensive agreement has been executed and 
entered into, the County shall make procurement records available for public 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   22 

inspection, upon request. 

a. Such procurement records shall include documents initially protected from 
disclosure during the negotiation phase on the basis that the release of such 
documents would adversely affect the financial interest or bargaining 
position of the County or private entity in accordance with Section II.D.3. 

b. Such procurement records shall not include (i) trade secrets of the private 
entity as defined in the Uniform Trade Secrets Act (Virginia Code 
Section 59.1-336 et seq.) or (ii) financial records, including balance 
sheets or financial statements of the private entity that are not generally 
available to the public through regulatory disclosure or otherwise. 

To the extent access to procurement records are compelled or protected by a court order, 
then the County must comply with such order. 

D.   Filing of PPEA Comprehensive Agreement with Auditor of Public Accounts 

In compliance with Virginia Code Section 56-575.9F, the County, within thirty (30) days 
of entering into a comprehensive agreement pursuant to the PPEA, shall submit a copy of such 
agreement and all supporting documents to the Auditor of Public Accounts. 

X.    GOVERNING PROVISIONS 

In the event of any conflict between these guidelines and procedures and the PPEA, as the 
same may be amended from time to time, the terms of the PPEA shall control. 

XI. TERMS AND DEFINITIONS 
"Affected jurisdiction" means any county, city, or town in which all or a portion of a qualifying 
project is located. 
 
"Appropriating body" means the body responsible for appropriating or authorizing funding to pay 
for a qualifying project. 
 
"Comprehensive agreement" means the comprehensive agreement between the private entity and the 
responsible public entity that is required by Virginia Code Section 56-575.9 prior to the 
development or operation of a qualifying project. 
 
"Conceptual stage" means the initial phase of project evaluation when the public entity makes a 
determination whether the proposed project serves a public purpose, meets the criteria for a qualifying 
project, assesses the qualifications and experience of a private entity proposer, reviews the project for 
financial feasibility, and warrants further pursuit. 
 
"Cost-benefit analysis" means an analysis that weighs expected costs against expected benefits in 
order to choose the best option. For example, a city manager may compare the costs and benefits 
of constructing a new office building to those of renovating and maintaining an existing structure 
in order to select the most financially advantageous option. 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   23 

 
"Detailed stage" means the second phase of project evaluation where the public entity has 
completed the conceptual stage and accepted the proposal and may request additional information 
regarding a proposed project prior to entering into competitive negotiations with one or more private 
entities to develop an interim or comprehensive agreement. 
 
"Develop" or "development" means to plan, design, develop, finance, lease, acquire, install, 
construct, or expand. 
 
"Interim agreement" means an agreement between a private entity and a responsible public entity that 
provides for phasing of the development or operation, or both, of a qualifying project. Such phases 
may include, but are not limited to, design, planning, engineering, environmental analysis and 
mitigation, financial and revenue analysis, or any other phase of the project that constitutes 
activity on any part of the qualifying project. 
 
"Lease payment" means any form of payment, including a land lease, by a public entity to the private 
entity for the use of a qualifying project. 
 
"Lifecycle cost analysis" means an analysis that calculates cost of an asset over its entire life span and 
includes the cost of planning, constructing, operating, maintaining, replacing, and when 
applicable, salvaging the asset. Although one proposal may have a lower initial construction cost, it 
may not have the lowest lifecycle cost once maintenance, replacement, and salvage value is 
considered. 
 
"Material default" means any default by the private entity in the performance of its duties under 
subsection E of Virginia Code Section 56-575.8 that jeopardizes adequate service to the public from a 
qualifying project. 
 
"Operate" means to finance, maintain, improve, equip, modify, repair, or operate. 
 
"Opportunity cost" means the cost of passing up another choice when making a decision or the 
increase in costs due to delays in making a decision. 
 
"Private entity" means any natural person, corporation, general partnership, limited liability 
company, limited partnership, joint venture, business trust, public benefit corporation, nonprofit 
entity, or other business entity. 
 
"Public entity" means the Commonwealth and any agency or authority thereof, any county, city 
or town and any other political subdivision of the Commonwealth, any public body politic and 
corporate, or any regional entity that serves a public purpose. 
 
"Qualifying project" means (i) any education facility, including, but not limited to a school 
building, any functionally related and subordinate facility and land to a school building 
(including any stadium or other facility primarily used for school events), and any depreciable 
property provided for use in a school facility that is operated as part of the public school system 
or as an institution of higher education; (ii) any building or facility that meets a public purpose 



Adopted: May 2, 2012 
 

   24 

and is developed or operated by or for any public entity; (iii) any improvements, together with 
equipment, necessary to enhance public safety and security of buildings to be principally used by 
a public entity; (iv) utility and telecommunications and other communications infrastructure; (v) 
a recreational facility; (vi) technology infrastructure, services, and applications, including, but 
not limited to, telecommunications, automated data processing, word processing and 
management information systems, and related information, equipment, goods and services; (vii) 
any services designed to increase the productivity or efficiency of the responsible public entity 
through the use of technology or other means, (viii) any technology, equipment, or infrastructure 
designed to deploy wireless broadband services to schools, businesses, or residential areas; (ix) 
any improvements necessary or desirable to any unimproved locally- or state-owned real estate; 
or (x) any solid waste management facility as defined in Virginia Code Section 10.1-1400 that 
produces electric energy derived from solid waste. 
 
"Responsible public entity" means a public entity that has the power to develop or operate the 
applicable qualifying project. 
 
"Revenues" means all revenues, income, earnings, user fees, lease payments, or other service 
payments arising out of or in connection with supporting the development or operation of a 
qualifying project, including without limitation, money received as grants or otherwise from the 
United States of America, from any public entity, or from any agency or instrumentality of the 
foregoing in aid of such facility. 
 
"Service contract" means a contract entered into between a public entity and the private entity 
pursuant to Virginia Code Section 56-575.5. 
 
"Service payments" means payments to the private entity of a qualifying project pursuant to a 
service contract. 
 
"State" means the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
 
"User fees" mean the rates, fees, or other charges imposed by the private entity of a qualifying 
project for use of all or a portion of such qualifying project pursuant to the comprehensive 
agreement pursuant to Virginia Code Section 56-575.9. 
 



COUNTY OF FLUVANNA 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT REVISED GUIDELINES FOR PROJECTS UNDER  

THE PUBLIC-PRIVATE EDUCATION FACILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE ACT 
OF 2002, AS AMENDED 

WHEREAS, the Public-Private Education Facilities and Infrastructure Act of 2002 (the 
“PPEA”), being Virginia Code Section 56-575.1 et seq., grants public entities with the authority 
to create public-private partnerships for the development of a wide range of projects for public 
use, if the public entity determines there is a need for the project, and that the private investment 
and/or involvement may provide the project to the public in a timely, cost effective fashion;  

WHEREAS, for the purposes of the PPEA, the County of Fluvanna, a political subdivision of 
the Commonwealth of Virginia, (the “County”) is a responsible public entity that has the power 
to develop or operate a qualifying project under the PPEA as such italicized terms are used in 
Virginia Code Section 56-575.1 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PPEA, the County, by the Board of Supervisors, must adopt 
guidelines in compliance with the PPEA in order to pursue any qualifying projects, and must 
review the same from time to time; 

WHEREAS, the County adopted guidelines in compliance with the PPEA previously, last 
revised April 15, 2009, and as such determined to revise the same as appropriate under the 
PPEA; therefore be it, 

RESOLVED, that that the Board of Supervisors of the County, hereby adopts the attached 
“Public-Private Education Facilities and Infrastructure Act of 2002, as Amended, County of 
Fluvanna, Amended and Restated Guidelines and Procedures” adopted May 2, 2012; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the County Administrator and his staff are authorized to prepare 
and execute any and all necessary documents pertaining to the adoption and enforcement of such 
guidelines. 

Adopted this 2nd day of May 2012 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST:   

 

       

Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 







































































1 



CSA FISCAL YEAR 

• July 1 – June 30 

• Fluvanna cut-off date for processing FY 12 invoices – 
typically, August 24 

• CSA year ends September 30  

2 



THE PROBLEM: 

 
The CSA Budget is over-encumbered by  $911,311 as of 

the end of the third quarter, FY 12. 
 

The local portion, at our base rate of 38.11%, equals 
$347,300 

3 



HISTORY 

4 



LOCAL SHARE 

Community Based Services:   19% 

Residential Services:   45% 

Other services:   38%                   

5 



3RD QUARTER DATA 

FY 11 FY 12 

Total Child Count 107 115 

Total Services 166 182 

Residential/Child Count 12 25 

Residential/Services 19 56 

Non-Residential/Child  
Count 

105 106 

Non-
Residential/Services 

147 123 

% Residential 11 31 

% Non-Residential 89 69 

6 



EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE  

FY 11 FY 12 

Total Services 166 182 

0 - $100 5 0 

101 - 500 16 13 

501 - 1000 6 6 

1001 – 5000 38 37 

5001 – 10,000 41 34 

10,001 + 60 92 

7 



EXPENDITURES BY CHILD  

FY 11 FY 12 

Total Children 107 115 

0-10,000 51 50 

10K – 25K 30 29 

25K – 50K 9 16 

50K – 100K 14 16 

100K – 250K 3 4 

250K+ 0 0 

8 



RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY 

FY 11 FY 12 

Projected Expenditure 464,019 959,987 

Average Expenditure 51,558 29,091 

Child Count 7 24 

Service Count 9 33 

9 



CPMT INITIATIVES 

• Analyze case-list by age and services provided  

• Analyze case-list by  age, presenting symptoms, diagnostic 
issues and concerns 

• Invite Dr. Peter Sheras/UVA , to discuss  effective 
approaches to working with angry youth 

• CSA Retreat discussion topic: Parenting 

10 



NEXT CSA END OF YEAR REPORT: OCTOBER/NOVEMBER 2012 

 
 

Thank you for your attention! 
 
 

11 





RESOLUTION TO ADOPT DESIGN-BUILD(“D/B”) PROCEDURES 
 
WHEREAS, circumstances may arise from time to time in which (i) a design-build contract for 
construction will be more advantageous than a competitive sealed bid construction contract; (ii) a 
design-build contract for construction will benefit the County; and (iii) competitive sealed 
bidding is not practical or fiscally advantageous; and 
 
WHEREAS, Virginia Code Section 2.2-4308 requires the County to adopt certain design-build 
procedures prior to using design-build contracts; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County 
that the attached Design-Build Procedures are hereby adopted. 
 
 
Adopted this _______ day of May, 2012. 
 
 
 
Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 

2

ATTACHMENT A



DESIGN-BUILD (“D/B”) PROCEDURES 
Adopted by Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 

________________, 2012 
 
In accordance with the provisions of § 2.2-4308 of the Code of Virginia (1950, as 
amended) (“Code”), and consistent with the procedures adopted by the 
Secretary of Administration utilizing Design-Build, the Fluvanna County Board of 
Supervisors hereby adopts the following procedures for the procurement of 
Design-Build (“D/B”) contracts, as defined in § 2.2-4301, which shall be followed 
by the County of Fluvanna, Virginia (“County”).   

A. LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY: Under authority of §§ 2.2-4303(D) and 2.2-4308 
of the Code, the County may contract to secure D/B projects on a fixed price 
or not-to-exceed price basis in accordance with these procedures. Under the 
authority of § 2.2-4303 (D) of the Code, the County is authorized to use 
competitive negotiations to procure D/B contracts when it determines in 
advance, and sets forth in writing, that competitive sealed bidding is either not 
practicable or not fiscally advantageous to the public which writing shall 
document the basis for this determination. 

B. CRITERIA FOR USE OF D/B CONTRACTS: D/B contracts are intended to 
minimize the project risk for the County and to reduce the delivery schedule 
by overlapping the design phase and construction phase of a project. 

C. PROCEDURE FOR USE OF D/B: 

1. Prior to making a determination as to the use of D/B for a specific 
construction project, the County shall have in its employ or under 
contract a licensed architect or engineer (“A/E”) with professional 
competence appropriate to the project who shall advise the County 
regarding the use of design-build for that project and who shall assist 
the County with the preparation of the Request for Proposal and the 
evaluation of such proposals. 

2. Prior to issuing a Request for Proposal for any design-build contract 
for a specific construction project, the County shall have documented 
in writing that for a specific construction project (i) a design-build or 
construction management contract is more advantageous than a 
competitive sealed bid construction contract; (ii) there is a benefit to 
the public body by using a design-build or construction management 
contract; and (iii) competitive sealed bidding is not practical or fiscally 
advantageous. 

a. The justifications for the use of D/B shall be stated in the 
Request for Qualifications. 

b. Requests for Proposals shall include and define the criteria of 
such construction project in areas such as site plans; floor plans; 
exterior elevations; basic building envelope materials; fire 
protection information plans; structural, mechanical (HVAC), 
and electrical systems; and special telecommunications; and 
may define such other requirements as determined appropriate 
for that particular construction project. 

D. D/B SELECTION PROCEDURES: On D/B projects, procurement of the 
contract shall be a two-step competitive negotiation process. The following 

3

ATTACHMENT B



procedures shall be used in selecting a design-builder and awarding a 
contract: 

1. The County shall appoint an Evaluation Committee ("Committee") which shall 
consist of at least three members, including a licensed design professional, if 
possible. 

 
2. The basis of the award of the contract shall be in accordance with § 2.2-4301 

(3)(b) and the criteria for the award shall be included in the Request for 
Proposals.  It is noted that cost is a critical component of the selection 
process.  

3. Selection of Qualified Offerors (STEP I): On D/B projects, the County shall 
conduct a prequalification process as follows to determine which offerors are 
qualified to receive Request for Proposals (RFPs). 

a) The County shall prepare a Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") containing 
the County’s facility requirements, building and site criteria, site and survey 
data (if available), the criteria to be used to evaluate RFQ Responses and 
other relevant information, including any unique capabilities or 
qualifications that will be required of the contractor. All offerors shall have a 
licensed Class "A" contractor and an Architect or Engineer registered in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia as part of the Project Team. 

b) The RFQ shall be posted in accordance with the current standards for the 
posting of public bids in the Code (see §2.2-4301 (Competitive 
Negotiation)). 

c) The Committee shall evaluate each offeror's RFQ responses and any other 
relevant information and shall determine which offerors are fully qualified 
and suitable for the project. 

d) The RFQ evaluation shall result in a short list of two to five offerors  
deemed most suitable for the project to receive the RFP.  An offeror may 
be denied prequalification only as specified under the Code of Virginia § 
2.2-4317, but the short list shall also be based upon the RFQ criteria. 

e) At least 30 days prior to the date established for the submission of 
proposals, the County shall advise in writing each offeror which sought 
prequalification whether that offeror has been prequalified. Prequalified 
offerors that are not selected for the short list shall likewise be provided the 
reasons for such decision. In the event that an offeror is denied 
prequalification, the written notification to such offeror shall state the 
reasons for such denial of prequalification and the factual basis of such 
reasons. 

4. Selection of Design-Build Contractor (STEP II): 

a) The County shall send an RFP to the D/B offerors on the short list for the 
project and request formal proposals from them. The criteria for award shall 
be included in the RFP. 

b) Sealed Technical Proposals as described in the RFP shall be submitted to 
the County, along with separately-sealed Cost Proposals, which shall be 
secured and kept sealed until evaluation of the Technical Proposals and 
the design adjustments are completed. 

4



c) The Committee will evaluate the Technical Proposals based on the criteria 
contained in the RFP.  It will inform each D/B offeror of any adjustments 
necessary to make its Technical Proposal fully comply with the 
requirements of the RFP. In addition, the County may require that offerors 
make design adjustments necessary to incorporate project improvements 
and/or additional detailed information identified by the Committee during 
design development. 

d) Based on the adjustments made to the Technical Proposals, the offeror 
may amend its Cost Proposal. In addition, an offeror may submit cost 
modifications to its original sealed Cost Proposal which are not based upon 
revisions to the Technical Proposals. 

e) The Committee shall evaluate (and rank if technical rankings are to be 
considered as a criteria for award) the technical proposals. Should the 
County determine in writing and in its sole discretion that only one offeror is 
fully qualified, or that one offeror is clearly more highly qualified than the 
others under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and awarded to 
that offeror. Otherwise, the Committee shall open the cost proposals and 
apply the criteria for award as specified in the RFP. 

f) The Committee shall make its recommendation for the selection of a 
design-builder based on its evaluations of the technical and cost proposals 
and all amendments thereto. The contract shall be awarded to the offeror 
who is fully qualified and has been determined to have provided the best 
value in response to the Request for Proposal. 

g) The County will notify all offerors who submitted proposals which offeror 
was selected for the project. In the alternative, the County may notify all 
offerors who submitted proposals of the County’s intent to award the 
contract to a particular offeror at any time after the County has selected the 
design-builder. When the terms and conditions of multiple awards are so 
provided in the RFP, awards may be made to more than one offeror. 

i) Upon request, documentation of the process used for the final selection 
shall be made available to the unsuccessful proposers. 

 
E. Reference is made to Section 7.30.1 of the Commonwealth of Virginia 

Construction and Professional Services Manual (2012 Edition, as amended) 
and all of its subsections for guidance in the use of these procedures, mutatis 
mutandis. 

5





 

******************************************** 
For County Administrator Use Only 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 _________________________________________  
County Administrator’s Signature 

  
 

the best avenue available in light of applicable grant requirements for achieving 
construction of the project within the funds and time available.   
 
Before commencing a design-build project, the County must have a licensed architect or 
engineer with professional competence appropriate to the project to advise the County 
regarding the use of design-build and to assist the County with the preparation of the 
Request for Proposal and the evaluation of such proposals.  Staff expects to return to 
the Board on this project by June 6, at which time staff will present additional 
information on the project and expects to ask the Board to make the necessary statutory 
determinations and allow the project to proceed as design-build.  At that time, staff 
additionally expects to request the Board to approve the Request for Proposal for the 
project and appoint an Evaluation Committee. 
 
The project is on a very tight timeline, with the grant authority calling for a construction 
completion date of Spring 2013.   
 
Accordingly, staff recommends approval of the amendment to the Architectural Services 
Agreement; that the Chairman or County Administrator be authorized to execute the 
amendment after approval by the County Attorney; and that the Chairman or County 
Administrator be authorized to issue written notices to proceed and such other 
approvals and authorizations as may be needed under the agreement in order for the 
project to progress in a timely manner.    
 
 
Submitted by staff:  Robert Popowicz, Economic Development Director 
Attachments: Resolution 
 Design Build Policy 

2





















Dear Ms. Weaver, 
  
Thank you for taking the time to speak with me earlier today.  
  
The code section I wish to amend is 15.1-7 Exempt sounds (L) which currently reads "Animals. 
Sounds generated from animals including, but not limited to, barking dogs."  
  
Proposed change: To delete barking dogs exemption.  
  
New Exemption L could read as follows: 
Animals. Sounds generated from animals including sheep, goats, pigs, ducks, animals used for 
farm labor but not domestic pets, in residential neighborhoods such as barking dogs.  
  
Or the county could simply completely delete section L.  
  
Please let me know the process for amending the current code section and the necessary steps to 
follow.  
  
Additionally, I would like to propose a new code section for chapter 4, Article 2. Dogs which is 
attached in a word document.  
  
Please let me know the process for creating a new code section and the necessary steps to follow.  
  
Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Rachel Turner    
 



Sec. 4-2-5 Noise from dogs. It shall be unlawful and shall be a nuisance for an owner or 
custodian of a dog to harbor or keep any dog within the county which frequently or for a continued 
duration howls, barks or makes other excessive, continuous or untimely sounds which are audible on the 
property of a complainant in the county; provided however, this section shall not apply to any dog 
located on property zoned Rural Areas District of five (5) acres or more, to any dog in a pound or an 
animal shelter or commercial kennel as defined in chapter 18 of the zoning ordinance, or to sounds caused 
by livestock or poultry. For the purposes of this section, “excessive, continuous or untimely sounds” shall 
mean any howling, barking or other animal noise which continues for thirty (30) consecutive minutes or 
more with no cessation of such sounds for time periods greater than five (5) minutes during the thirty (30) 
consecutive minutes. 
B. Complaints of animal noise. Notwithstanding section 4-2-6 of this Code, no person shall 
be charged with a violation of this section unless the complainant appears before a magistrate and 
requests a summons to be issued. However, when a violation is committed in the presence of an animal 
control officer or police officer, he shall have the authority to initiate all necessary proceedings. 
C. Penalty for violation. A violation of this section shall be punishable as a class 3 
misdemeanor, and any owner or custodian of an animal found guilty under this section shall be required 
to abate the disturbance. Upon a third conviction within twelve (12) months of any offense under this 
section involving the same animal, in addition to imposing a fine, the court shall order the animal to be 
removed from any area of the county covered by this section. If the owner or custodian of the animal fails 
to comply with such order within two (2) weeks, the animal control officer shall seize the animal and 
offer the animal to an animal shelter for adoption in a home outside of the area of the county covered by 
this section. 
4-2-6 Enforcement of animal laws; penalties. 

A. Enforcement of this chapter is vested in one or more animal control officers as employed 
by the county police department. When in uniform or upon displaying a badge or other credentials of 
office, such officers shall have the power to issue a summons or obtain a felony warrant as necessary, 
providing the execution of such warrant shall be carried out by any law enforcement officer as defined in 
Virginia Code § 9.1-101, to any person found in the act of violating this chapter, Virginia Code §§ 3.2- 
6500 et seq., and all laws for the protection of animals, and shall exercise all other powers as provided by 
state law and such other duties as may be provided by the board of supervisors. 
B. Unless otherwise specified, any person violating a provision of this chapter shall be guilty 
of a class 4 misdemeanor. 
 
This language has been copied and pasted from the Albemarle county code. I propose changing 
the work animal to dog and would like to add growling and showing signs of aggression.  
 
A link to Albemarle county code: 
http://www.albemarle.org/upload/images/Forms_Center/Departments/County_Attorney/Forms/A
lbemarle_County_Code_Ch04_Animals_And_Fowl.pdf 
 

http://www.albemarle.org/upload/images/Forms_Center/Departments/County_Attorney/Forms/Albemarle_County_Code_Ch04_Animals_And_Fowl.pdf
http://www.albemarle.org/upload/images/Forms_Center/Departments/County_Attorney/Forms/Albemarle_County_Code_Ch04_Animals_And_Fowl.pdf



	Agenda 5-2-2012
	TAB M - Budget Public Hearing 4-11-2012
	TAB Mc - Minutes 4-18-2012
	TAB N - Union Mills Ag/Forestal District Renewal
	TAB O - Resolution VDOT SSYP 
	TAB P - Farmers Market Promotion Grant App
	TAB Q - Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)
	TAB R -Resolution Guidelines for PPEA 
	TAB S - Supplemental Appropriation for aditional State Revenue to the Schools FY12
	TAB T - Accounts Payable
	TAB U - CSA request for budget supplement
	TAB V - Proposed adopotion of Design-Build Procedures
	TAB W - Amendment to the DJG Contract for the Fork Union Fire Station
	TAB XYZ - Resolution FY2013-2017 CIP 
	TAB A - Resolution FY13 Budget Set tax Rates and Appropriate Funds
	TAB B - Appointment Board of Zoining Appeals 
	TAB C - Request to amend the Noise Ordinance of the County Code



